AGENDA
PUBLIC HEARING
RICHLANDS TOWN COUNCIL
At the Richlands Town Hall
December 14, 2021
5:30 P.M.

L. Call Hearing to Order

II.  Public Comment: Receive input on the proposed allocation of
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding of $5,430,362.00
which is over 1% of the total current budget. The only items
currently being considered for immediate expenditure from this
funding are improvements to the Richlands Public Library
(8$154,000), Greenway Stage Phase II ($25,000), SSES Grant
additional funding ($20,000), and Body Worn Cameras for the
Richlands Police Department ($9,000). The cost for each item is an
estimate and the actual cost may vary.

ITI.  Close Public Comment Period

IV.  Adjourn Public Hearing






AGENDA
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
At Richlands Town Hall
December 14, 2021
6:00 P.M.

I.  Call the Meeting to Order
II. Invocation
III.  Pledge of Allegiance

IV.  Additions/Deletions to Agenda
(This includes the removal/transfer of any Consent Agenda items to the Regular Agenda that need full discussion.)

a. Approval of Agenda

V. Approval of Minutes

a. November 9 — Public Hearing, Nov. 9- Regular Council Meeting, Nov. 15-
Recessed Meeting, Nov. 30- Work Session

VI. Consent Agenda
a. Authorization to Pay Bills (November)
b. Approval of $500 allocation for Christmas Parade from GL
c. Authorize Line of Credit Drawdown Number #12 from National Bank for
Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project ($13,686.91) and Water
Treatment, Plant Upgrades and Improvements ($1,184) cost for November
billing for a total of $14,870.91.

VII. Scheduled Public Comments (Five Minute Maximum)
a. Laura Mollo — Misc. Concerns
b. Derek & Maria White — Bike Race

VIII.  Unscheduled Public Comments (Three Minute Maximum)

IX. Agenda Items
a. Audit Presentation
Corbin Stone
b. Mural Request
Ellen Elmes
c. Downtown Redevelopment Grant Update
Debbie Milton
Conditional Use Permit Approval
Charter Update Discussion
ARPA Discussion Committee
Consideration of ARPA Fund Allocation

@ o A



XI.

XII.

XIIIL.

X1V,

XV.

XVI.

h.

Discussion of Capital Purchases

Town Manager Report:

a.

b.
c.
d.

Grant Updates

1. Greenspace Phase 11

2. VRSA Safety Grant

3. Litter Grant
Discussion on Council Minutes
Conflict of Interest Forms
Miscellaneous

Attorney Comments:

a.

Fairfax Avenue Update

Council Member Reports (Non-voting Items):

a.

Mary Ann Strong

b. Richard Brown

o oo

Jeff Hurst

Doug Ratliff
Mike Street
Darrell Addison

Mayor’s Comments:

Executive/Closed Session Pursuant to VA Code Section:

a. 2.2-3711(A) — Attorney Consultation- Contract negotiations (Property

Return to Open Session, Certification, Report on Action

Acquisition, Teen Center)

Adjourn/ Recess Meeting

Next regular meeting date is January 11, 2021, at 6:00 pm



The Richlands Town Council held a “Public Hearing” in the Richlands Council Chambers on November 09,
2021, at 5:15 pm, with the following present:

Mayor: Rodney D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Jeff Hurst, Mike Street, Doug Ratliff

Richard Brown
Council Member Absent: Logan Plaster
Town Attorney : Michael Thomas

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.

Mayor Cury — Solicit Public Comments — Regarding the Conditional Use application submitted by Bad
Axery, LLC for the property located at 1217 Front Street.

John - Before we start do we have a quorum for the Planning Commission?
Mayor Cury - We don’t have a quorum, but this is a Joint Public Hearing.
John - We would like to expedite for this individual, if something we can’t do we can move on.

Mayor Cury - | am being very careful on how this is reading, it is a Joint Public Hearing with the Council
and the Commission. | will move forward with implied tacit approval only, because | don’t think we can
properly do that the way it’s advertised but to those who are interested and have concerned we can
receive public comment. Maybe | can rely on the Town Attorney to advise us if we can receive public
comment and make it a matter of record. If you will advise us, do you have time to research that for us?
While he is doing that, will that be acceptable? Ok, | think we can go ahead and receive public
comment for those who made the special effort to come here. | called it tacit implied approval because |
don’t have the authority to nor does the Council to entertain much more than what is advertised as a
Joint Public Hearing, | would be very cautious Members of Council.

Mayor Cury - | will follow this procedure and we’ll move forward, and | will wait on the Town Attorney’s
advice. (Michael commented but did not have speaker on)

Mayor Cury - Gerald Collins

Gerald Collins — 253 Gary Drive - We want to do Axe Throwing and a Milkshake Shop inside and some
batting cages. We just want to do something fun for the community and for the kids. There is a lot of
traveling teams. They don’t have anywhere to go and practice batting on off seasons. We just wanted
to put a few things in and hopefully be good for the Town. Maybe some of the surrounding communities



can come over and throw axes and have a good time. | want it to be a family friendly place. | don’t want
to be open all night or have night club or anything like that, just family friendly fun.

Mayor Cury - Thank you Mr. Collins and we apologize for not having the requirement from Planning
Commission but that is beyond our control. | am sure the people who are not here are not here due to a
very good reason.

Mayor Cury — Sarah Collins

Sarah Collins — 253 Gary Drive - We have the same goal, we just want a family oriented business. We
have three (3) boys we would like to bring something fun to the community, something fun to do on the
side for our kids and our families. We are involved with our church a lot so maybe it would be
something for our youth groups and surrounding areas. Just something fun for everybody to do because
there’s not a lot to do around here, it is time to start bringing some things in and make it a good
community.

Mayor Cury - Thank you for your input and again | apologize on the behalf of the Planning Commission. |
am sure it is incidents beyond their control or they would be here.

Mayor Cury — Seth White

Seth White — Some of you may not know where location is or you've probably figured it out by now. It is
in the bottom of the old Richlands News Press. We started our fagade construction today if you drive by
you will see it. We are very excited about it and what they are going to do. When Gerald approached
me with the idea, | had thrown axes in Johnson City and West Virginia. It is a lot of fun. There is an Axe
Throwing League, | think he will try to bring down here, it is just another activity. You all know we kind
of lack for activities in small communities. Anything we can do especially to bring people downtown, it is
very exciting. We have a lot of good things going on in that end of Town. The Mercantile is doing great
and it looks good. | purchased the building beside of it. We have a business going there, | think they got
their packet from the Town today and will be opening very soon. Trying to get more businesses in
downtown Richlands. On a side note, one of the things | would like to mention we had Joint Public
Hearings at the County both bodies would have to call their meeting to order. You have called your
meeting to order and then if the Planning Commission doesn’t have a quorum, you call yours to order
and you can still move forward, your portion of the Public Hearing will be out of the way. They can still
do theirs at a later date. That usually how we do it, both bodies call to order and take vote.

Mayor Cury - | appreciate that and you are exactly right we have called our body to order; I think it does
require a meeting from the Planning Commission and there is no delay tactic at all. It is just a matter of
protocol and proper procedure. Thank you for understanding. When this is concluded | am thinking of a
suggestion.



Seth - | just wanted to say thank you all and let you know it is nothing nefarious going on. The Town
Ordinance any type of entertainment business is the nature of, there is nothing that Gerald don’t want
to do. it is family friendly oriented. The building is about 3500 square feet, it is going on the bottom
floor and there is a lot of space to do what he wants to do. They have one of the milkshake shops in
Lebanon. He is involved with that one too with his sister and it has been successful. | hear the
milkshakes are great. Come and throw axes. If you need anything don’t hesitate to ask.

Mayor Cury — Eleanor Arms

Eleanor Arms — 1201 2" Street - | am going to be your new neighbor and | do want to welcome you to
the neighborhood. Anyone who puts this much effort into it you know you are going into business. |
am practical and | have lived in this place for 23 years, | know when you blend business and residential
sometimes there are some unintended consequences. | have been living in these consequences almost
the entire time | have lived here which is parking. | know | am the street behind but | am curious about
the parking situation. That would be my only concern.

Mayor Cury - That is something we can consider in regular Council meeting.

Mayor Cury - Laura Mollo

Laura Mollo — 262 Linwood Drive — When | first heard about the axe throwing business, | got super
excited, it is something a lot of other areas and even here is starting to pick up, activity in axe throwing.
I think it is a wonderful idea to bring to our Town because a lot of areas don’t have it, | think the closest
one to us might be Coeburn which just opened. The Spearhead Trails opened that up in Coeburn. | think
by bringing it here open ourselves up to a lot of our surrounding towns, Tazewell, Lebanon, Bluefield
and even Abingdon coming to us instead of going to Coeburn and Johnson City which is obviously going
to help our businesses, restaurants and anything else. As a citizen | am super excited to see them

coming in and | hope you guys will support that. We have two (2) small kids and we would like to take
them axe throwing.

Mayor Cury — Is there anyone else who would like to speak on this Public Hearing regarding Bad Axery?

Randy Smith — 315 Grayson Avenue — | am the Vice-Chair of the Planning Commission; Richard could not
be with us tonight he had to be out of Town. 1 would like to apologize for not having a quorum. We had
commitments but apparently other things come up and they were not able to make it. | just wanted to
make an apology for everyone. It is certainly not one we want to drag out we want to get it moving on.

Mayor Cury —Is there anyone else who would like to speak on this Public Hearing?

Seth White - The Town has a parking lot on Front Street down there. The parking lot below Red, White
and Youth it belongs to the Town.



Mayor Cury - 1 don’t know exactly but | think it is Town property.

Seth White - There is a large parking area down there and lot of street parking. Gerald’s business is going
to be more in the evening and weekend type of thing. If you go down there on a Saturday or Sunday it is
kind of like a ghost town. We did think this through, even when | talked about the building beside of us
that was a consideration. Eventually we will have a few parking spots on the lot that is in between the
old Richlands News Press and the other building. . That is one of the reasons | purchased that property. |
don’t think parking is going to be an issue. | know we will be very respectful of that; | am almost 100%
confident that at least some of that lot belongs to the Town.

Mayor Cury - | will ask the Town Manager and our Attorney to talk about planning another Public
Hearing where the Planning Commission can be here. | suggest you work with Jeff and Richard and
other members of the Commission. Jeff is our representative of the Commission. Plan and advertise as
soon as possible so we can proceed appropriately.

Michael - | talked to Brad, he said you can still have the Public Hearing just can’t be a vote. | don’t think
there was a plan to vote anyway for today.

Mayor Cury —John and | talked about it this afternoon typically when we are asking for a Conditional
Use Permit, the Planning Commission will adjourn after this meeting and they go into another room and
they decide their course of action, they take a vote and come out with a signed paper. It is not like we
said it, it is an official document that states what their vote is and who voted for what. That is the
recommendation that would be presented in formal meeting of Council. We will convene at 6:00pm; |
suggest we follow procedure and protocol. Ask that Jeff our representative to the Commission and John
be in contact with Richard Smith who is the Chairman of the Planning Commission and try to schedule a
Public Hearing as soon as possible and advertise it appropriately. Do you think that is acceptable?

Mary Ann — | make a motion to adjourn the Public Hearing, Jeff second the motion.

Mayor Cury - If there is no further discussion, | will take a voice vote for everyone in favor of closing the
Public Hearing say “I”, any opposed. All “I”

Meeting Adjourn will convene at 6:00pm at the Regular Council Meeting.

Mayor Cury - Adjourned Public Hearing - Regular Council Meeting at 6:00pm

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk



§

The Richlands Town Council held a regular monthly meeting in the Richlands Council Chambers on
November 9, 2021, at 6:00 pm with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff, Jeff Hurst

Mike Street, Richard Brown
Council Member Absent: Logan Plaster
Town Attorney: Michael Thomas

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Cury — To the Members of Council, those present and those who could not be here, | checked my
email a few minutes ago and | have an important email to share with you. Dated November 9, 2021 - To
Rodney Cury, Mayor of Richlands- Read Resignation letter from Logan Plaster, resignation to take effect
immediately, as the Mayor | accept his resignation.

Doug - | make a motion that we name Laura Mollo, she was second vote getter, | think Logan was right
she deserves that position.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to nominate Laura Mollo to fill the unexpired term of
Councilman Plaster.

Jeff - | second the motion.

Jeff - | guess if it’s anything like my situation she or whoever would be appointed until the next election
correct. There would be four (4) seats next election.

Doug ~ | think it has to be special election. In November there will be four (4) seats open. If we name
Ms. Mollo to the Council she would have to run with us.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to appoint Laura Mollo to fill the unexpired term of
Councilman Plaster and she would be part of the special election in Nov. 2022, is that correct?

Michael - Correct, It would be a special election, Council could place their own Election Day but that is a
very costly process. That typically is why you have on Election Day in November is to keep cost down for
the Town. The Council has the ability to set another election date. We would have to petition the Circuit
Court for Writ of Election within 45 days.



Mayor Cury —Such as we did when | vacated my seat to become Mayor and we petition the Council for
special election.

Michael - That is correct.

Mike - Personally | think we need an application process, | was very quick to appoint Jeff, looking back
on that and Jeff | like you a lot but | shouldn’t have done it and | am not saying you are not right for the
job. Ms. Mollo has let me know that numerous times that | did that in about 30 seconds, not to say Ms.
Mollo wouldn’t do a fine job I'm just in favor of the application process.

Doug — The election was so close and it has only been a week, the will of the people she came in 2", |
can see where Mike is coming from, but she came in 2nd, | think this is a different situation, she came in
2nd and it was the will of the people so she should be named to Council.

Mike - How would it make it fair that we wouldn’t give it to the person who finished 4th? There were
only 70 votes between Logan and the 4% Place.

Doug - That was Rick Wood.

Mike - That was the same election.

Doug - The closer election was a week ago.

Mike - | get what you are saying, | am for the application process.

Mary Ann - As | told Ms. Mollo | totally that respect she has worked extremely hard and | admire her
hard work. | am not saying she is not the right person to fill Logan’s seat but like Mike described Laura
has made a lot of good points to us and one of those being an application process. I'm not saying she
would not get the vacancy. | would have to agree with Mike, in my opinion we have 45 days and that
we go thru the application process.

Jeff - 1 was going to say being involved in the election, a week ago any of the candidates Ms. Mollo or
Mr. Jackson would be fine replacements. As Doug said she had 2" place in the election, the numbers
that she got would be good representation for the Town that is why | seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-No, Mike — No, Mary Ann —
No Motion carries —3/2. Motion does not carry.



i

Mike - | make a motion that we begin the process with John O’Daniel an application process and discuss
later in the meeting as to what that would look like. | think we should do that very soon. [ think it should
be an application process. | make the motion to be an application process for the vacancy.

Mary Ann - | will second the motion.
Mayor Cury - Is there any discussion on the application process?

Mary Ann - The only thing | would say | do think it is deserving a quick process, | know we have 45 days
but we need to move on this quickly and be prepared at our December meeting to appoint the next
Councilmember for Logan’s vacancy.

Mayor Cury - You are suggesting that we do it before the next meeting.

Mary Ann - We will have the applications; in our December meeting we vote and have the person
appointed.

Mayor Cury - | just wanted to make sure that | understood. The motion Mike that you stated is to have
an application process and we can iron out the details.

Doug - | would like to expand on what Mike said, if we want the will of the people why can’t we limit it
to the last two (2) elections of the two (2) people that got the most votes and in 2nd Place. Limit it to
Mr. Woods and Ms. Mollo, because that is the will of the people. | don’t think Council has the right to
have their choices why can’t we go by the voters, seems like we never do, but in this case | think we
should and limit it to those two (2) people.

Mayor Cury - Is there any more discussion on Mike’s motion for an application process?

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries unanimously— 5/0.

Doug - Can | make another motion? | make a motion that we limit to follow the will of the people for
both elections and limit the application to Mr. Woods as Mike so eloquently brought up and Ms. Mollo.

We do research on those two (2) applications and limit to those two {2).

Richard - | second the motion.

Maybr Cury - Is there discussion to limit the application process to two (2) people specifically Rick Wood
and Laura Mollo. Am | correct Doug?

Doug — Correct



Mike —1 am not sure we want to limit to two (2).

We have an example in the room tonight, Seth White on the Board of Supervisors

Mike - | thought this was handled incredibly well, Seth did not run in that following election that takes
politics completely out of it. 1 am not sure how the process of the application process for the County of
Supervisors and when | envisioned what this may look like | was looking at that. And | liked that. | think
there needs some fine print personally.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — No, Mary Ann —

No Motion carries — 3/2 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - As the Mayor | would like to make a suggestion, we hold further detail for what we
propose to be an addition to the agenda | would suggest that. Thank you

Mayor Cury — Do we have any additions/deletions/corrections to the agenda?
John - Under XIV - Add (b) Attorney Client Privilege 2.2-3711(A)(7).
Mayor Cury - Under IX- And (i} Application Process

Richard - 1 don’t know where the appropriate place is for this | would like to see it in and out as quickly
as possible to discuss the Conditional Use Permit that we discussed earlier in the Public Hearing.

Mayor Cury - In order to facilitate a rapid discussion we should have that as early as possible. | would
suggest could it make VI (a). One thing | want to do we have “Scheduled Public Comments” Laura Mollo
and “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Shanna Plaster. Anyone else who would like to speak under
“Unscheduled Public Comment”, a three (3) minute time limit?

Mayor Cury - We need a motion to accept the agenda as amended.

Jeff - | make a motion to accept the agenda as amended, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Voice Vote - Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury — Approval of Minutes — October 12 ~ Public Hearing, October 12- Regular Council Meeting.

Mayor Cury - Any corrections or deletions to the Public Hearing and Regular Council Meeting October
12?



Jeff - I make a motion to accept the minutes as presented, Doug seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Voice Vote - Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury — Consent Agenda — Authorization to Pay Bills (September) — Two (2) check registers.

Jeff - 1 make the motion to authorize Mr. O’Daniel to pay the bills, Mary Ann seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann

—Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - Before we get into “Scheduled Public Comments” | have two (2) things that | would like to
request that anyone that has their phone on please mute. Please mute your phone it is distracting.

Mayor Cury - We added VI (b) this is regarding the application for Bad Axery.

Richard - I am assuming we had proper notice with regarding the Public Hearing honestly | missed it and
didn’t notice we were having the Public Hearing until | got my Council packet on Friday. Is there a
separate Conditional Use Permit, we are looking at to having to grant for this Bad Axery business? We
have issued Conditional Use Permits over and over again for mobile homes without and not involving
the Planning Commission. Just wondering why the Planning Commission had to be involved.

John - | think the way it was written was for entertainment business it requires a Public Hearing, on with
the Planning Commission and one with the Town Council. Instead of having two (2) separate ones we
tried to put them together.

Richard - | think it specifically talks about Pool Halls.

John - It says entertainment such as, | don’t have a copy in front of me but the way we interpreted it was
entertainment.

Richard - In the long run it is going to be the same Conditional Use Permit that we grant correct?
John —Similar
Richard — That is the question that | had.

John - I guess for the Conditional Use Permit - how late are you going to be open are you allowing
people at a certain age, will you have alcohol things of that nature so at this point depending on what

5



kind of entertainment you can set additional requirements for the business. The intent of the process is
to make sure when somebody does open if there are any additional requirements that Council or the
Planning Commission recommends they can be discussed.

Mayor Cury - Richard asked about this out in the hall, and | really don’t have the right answer. If the
Planning Commission were to proceed with its own Public Hearing how quickly can that occur?

John - 1 would have to check but | believe you have to have two (2) ads and that has to be so many days
before and up to seven (7) days so | anticipate three (3) to four (4) weeks. | will have to look and get two
(2) advertisements in the paper for two (2) different weeks and then have the meeting.

Richard - Is that something in the zoning?
John - | believe it is.

Mayor Cury - | don’t know how to answer but my time on Planning Commission if you remember Mr.
Vance he was trying to explain to me about zoning and not listed use, it is just not saying no it just not a
yes because it is not listed | am not arguing against this at all, please know this, | am just trying to
understand the procedure as well.

Richard - I would like to make a motion based on the results and recommendations of the Planning
Commission for Council to go ahead and approve the Conditional Use Permit based on the approval of
the Planning Commission.

Mayor Cury - If the Planning Commission comes with a favorable recommendation the Manager would
be allowed to give the Conditional Use Permit and for some reason but | don’t anticipate the Planning
Commission to give a recommendation against it, would have to come back to Council.

Richard - | am just trying to knock a step out to get this done quicker for these people to be able to open
their business in Town and invest.

Doug — | will second the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - John the direction from the Council for you to advertise a Public Hearing as soon as
possible.

Mayor Cury - | was asked to reiterate this by the Town Manager and it does help to facilitate an orderly
meeting we had what we called an “Embedded Resolution” | would like to read it, it is kind of long it is

6



'

very important. (Read the Embedded Resolution). Public Comment is for us to listen and discussion in
what is asked or said shall remain until we are in our own time of Councilmember comments. It will give
us time to think about what is being said being presented by anyone in this community. Give us proper

time to digest what they are saying act on it or what we are propose that we study and act on it at
another session.

Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” ~ Laura Moilo

Laura Mollo — 262 Linwood Drive - 1 think the Revitalization Grant is an excellent opportunity for
Richlands not just for the businesses but for the Town itself. | actually got to attend the last meeting
here and | think the next meeting is on the 15" of November. My only suggestion is to please advertise
and get the word out to the local businesses a little bit more clearly. 1 spoke to a couple of the business
owners that were not aware of the grant so | don’t know how but my suggestion would be to draw up a
letter because you should have a list of the businesses based on the business licenses. Just draft one (1)
letter and make a bunch of letters for those businesses and get those people in here for the meeting so
they won’t be missing out on grant money. Obviously those buildings are being revitalized so they will
look better and will affect the Town as a whole. | appreciate your time. Thank you.

Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Shanna Plaster

Mayor Cury - Ms. Plaster thank you for coming as a Member of the Board of Supervisor it is always an
honor to have members here.

Shanna Plaster - Thank you for having me, it is nice to see everyone. | just want urge to us to be looking
into our flood problem again. | sent some of you a FEMA Grant, | had two (2) that were returned and |
apologize for that. | was really excited when | saw the grant, it not only fixed our flooding problem it
also helped our economic development. Anytime we can find a grant that fixes a problem and brings us
forward | think we need to look into that. That being said | attended the last Flood Committee meeting
and that is where we left it, that we need to have a feasibility study in order to move on some of these
grants. The County is offering to advertise for a firm to do a feasibility study and hopefully they can look
into some of these grants. Unfortunately, the grant | sent to you the deadline is tomorrow for the pre-
application fee. | just wanted to put in front of your minds so we need to still keep that as a priority if
we can’t have economic development if half our Town is flooding every four (4) or five (5) years. We
need to fix the problem. Thank you. Everyone has my number if anyone wants to talk about it, the
County wants to be involved in however we can. Please email or call me and we can discuss further.

Mayor Cury —~ Electric PCA Discussion - John | will turn over to you to discuss.
John - We are having technical difficulty right now.

Mayor Cury - We will have a ten (10) minute recess.



Mayor Cury - We are back in Session. Councilmember Hurst had to be excused but he will be back in
about thirty minutes.

John - | have passed out a copy of the slides he has prepared, a copy of the PCA that is currently in our
rate schedule. | ask him to present what we currently have in place and what his recommendation
would be if we do move forward with the PCA. | will turn over to him and let him walk thru the slides for
the recommendations they have come up with for the Town of Richlands.

Jake — (Went over the presentation, attached in the minutes)

Mike - | want to thank you for all your involvement and everything you have taught us | have learned a
ton about PCA and how it is beneficial. Mayor | would like to make a motion that we accept GDA's
recommendation for PCA.

Richard - | second the motion.

Doug - As far as PCA by itself that is fine but if you look at the entirety when the Town takes money off
the top it is going to put an undue burden on the citizens and the PCA. The PCA has to take into
consideration the cost of the electricity, running the system and the money that the Town takes off the
top. It is trying to fulfill two (2) different roles. | would like to ask the Town Attorney if we shouldn’t ask
for comments from the communities that are present, since it is a public utility. They should be able to
make comments.

Michael - If Council would want to allow, it’s not my decision to make it is up to the Council.

Doug — | appreciate what you are saying. | think we have been counseled correctly. It is not his decision
or suggestion if community members should be involved that would be a Council decision.

Doug - | ask the Council if the Council minds comments from the public at this time.

Mike — | don’t know what the benefit is we already had “Unscheduled Public Comments” and
“Scheduled Public Comments”. If it was that important to them why did they not come here?

Doug - They are here now. Can we not let them speak now?

Mayor Cury - As far as public comment this is our time to discuss amongst us

Doug - If you are not going to let the public, to me the public should be able to comment anytime
because they pay the bills and we work for them but | disagree with that, but that is what Council does.

They don’t allow for enough community participation. But being said that is why | am going to vote “no”
on the PCA simply if it was just running the system and paying for the system that is fine. But the PCA



will have to fulfill two (2) or three (3) different roles. It is going to be a burden to our citizens to pay that
PCA.

Mike - We have been thru this numerous times this doesn’t do anything that harms any type of user for
our electrical system. This allows for credits on biils when it is not being used 1 see zero issues with this
and will benefit our citizens. We give our citizens plenty of opportunity to speak that is what we are here
for we are elected to make these decisions we give plenty of notice and plenty of opportunity if the
citizens have anything to say. That is a very unfair statement to all of Council, very disrespectful. |am
always open for conversation | have had people teli me how great the PCA is compared to the rest of the
landscape of what financially is, not fair and | think this is completely different and | think your reasoning
is wrong. |think you don’t understand or maybe need to talk to Jake some more in what this looks like
and how it would benefit our citizens it is a total benefit.

Mayor Cury - Suggestion for Members of Council, | will give one more chance for each person to speak.

Richard - | can remember being on the Council, | think 2006/2010 at different times we voted to
whether we add or not add the PCA, am | correct?

Mayor Cury - That is correct.

Richard - The only part even though | second the motion, it updates the need automatically and not the
need for Council approval every three (3) months but | think being updated and keeping the price of
what is the actual PCA and how our utilities are performing. Maybe we need to vote on it every three
(3) months, because it may be something we don’t need.

Mayor Cury — Would that be an amendment to the motion?
Richard - | just thought | would mention.

Mayor Cury — 1 am following you Richard but if that is the ultimate result, we can talk about thatin a
minute.

Richard - If Mike’s motion fails | will make another motion to alter it. It gives us some idea and also
gives Mr. O’Daniel and his staff some idea how the budget is performing. | know it is not for being a
money maker but | can remember on several occasions Mr. Taylor saying we don’t need to add the PCA

this month, | don’t want it to go six (6) to nine (9) months and we didn’t need the PCA and we added it
anyway.

Mayor Cury - | follow, Before we go any further in amending is there any more discussion on this
motion as it currently stands.



Doug - | spent more time and | do understand the electric system probably as good as or better than
anyone on this Council. | do understand what PCA is, | know the bottom line is the bill the customers
get each month that PCA is going to add more to that bill, if you look at the entirety of the situation the
PCA is not a benefit to the everyone, it adds more to the bill, if we weren’t taking off the top
$600,000/$700,000 each year that PCA would probably never have to be used and it would be zero |
understand that and that is a fact just saying the PCA is a benefit that is bull crap. It is not a benefit when
the Town is taking such a large sum off the top. How can it be a benefit to the citizens when only 79% of
the Town pays that? Mary Ann doesn’t pay that and | don’t pay in Hidden Valley, three (3) of us on
Council don’t even have to pay that but we are going to vote it on the rest of the Town. That is not a
benefit. | am sure if it was challenged in the Court of Law that would be illegal for part of the Town to
have to carry the budget when myself, Mary Ann and all due respect Richard doesn’t have to pay this.

Mayor Cury - Does that conclude your comments?

Mayor Cury - | think there was a suggestion to withdraw the motion and re-make a motion would be the
best thing.

Mike - | will withdraw my motion

Mayor Cury - Richard do you withdraw your second?

Richard - Yes

Mayor Cury - This motion has been withdrawn.

Richard - | would like to make a motion to institute the PCA based on the approval of the Council every
quarter and not that it automatically updates without the need for approval that way it gets us an idea
on how well our utilities are performing and we are not overcharging or collecting something we don’t
need to collect.

Mayor Cury - The motion is to adopt the PCA with a review with Council every three (3) months.
Richard ~ Yes sir

Mike - | will second the motion.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion and second on the floor to adopt the PCA as presented with the
exception it will be reviewed by Council every three (3) months. | will entertain one discussion from each

person.

Doug — | will vote “No” but all due respect to Richard that is the most sensible addition to that
amendment but | will be forced to vote “No” because of the entirety but that is a great idea.

10



John - | don’t know how quick we can get this in place and on our bills | think the hand out that you all
have there is an effective date, | will ask for some leniency on the staff side to try to and get it updated

on our system hopefully in the next thirty days, if it takes longer | will keep you updated on that
timeline.

Mayor Cury - Thank you, | am sure Council will extend every leniency that it can now that expediency is
of the greatest importance.

Mary Ann - First as Mike said | would like to thank Jake for a lot of time and effort and I've learned a

lot, | would like to know if our Town Managers opinion on the recommendation and on the motion that
is currently on the floor.

John - 1 think that the three (3) months makes sense essentially we are doing it on an annual basis right
now in a year we will reassess. | think the three (3) months review and approval by Council is going to
be very difficult for you all because we may have three (3) quarters where it goes down and three (3)
months were it goes up. It gets people upset because it looks like you are going up on their utility bills
versus if it regulates itself you would be more hands off | think you being updated and you know where
it is that is definitely something that | would be important to Council. 1 just want you all to know that are

going to be some quarters where we have to because our electric cost went up and you are going to be
getting those phone calls.

Doug — What is involved in that cost?

John - The cost of the electric system

Doug - | think there is three/four different aspects to pay that the people to run the system. It's to pay

for the electricity and to pay for the $700,000/$800,000 that is taken off the top it is putting an undue
burden on the PCA, is that correct?

John - | believe the PCA is just based on the cost of the electric but | will defer to JDS for clarification.
Jake - It does not include distribution cost or agents (Could not hear everything he said)
Doug - The entirety of the bill it is not directly to the PCA for the cost but if you look at the entirety

running the system with those three (3) or four (4) aspects | brought to the attention of the Town

Manager that PCA is going to be indirectly reflected higher into that bill because of the extra money that
the Town takes off the top.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- With all due respect to Richard his was a great

11



addition | will still have to vote “No”, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —Yes Motion carries — 3/1
Motion carries.

Mayor Cury ~ Planning Commission Member Update — John

John — I have a handout that lists all the members of the Planning Commission and the next item is the
IDA and Zoning Board. Due to the amount of turnover we have had the terms and how long each
person has been appointed we have lost all that so | am asking Council essentially to reappoint all these
to the terms beside of their names and we can start fresh on this. Usually this is something we try to do
in June/July or start of the year.

Mayor Cury - You are asking for the Council to reappoint Richard to the Planning Commission then the
IDA and then the Zoning Board of Appeals.

John - The issue we have all these individuals that have been appointed we don’t know exactly their
terms; we want to try to clean up the best we can. The amount of turnover that we have had there

were some questions on exactly their terms we wanted to clean all that up.

Mayor Cury - Planning Commission — (Attached in the minutes of terms) | will need a motion to accept
these members for the terms as listed.

Richard - | will make the motion, Mike second the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann - Yes

Motion carries — 4/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - IDA Member Update - John do you need to say anything about these or do we just need to
adopt?

John - Just adopt but | will say the IDA is looking at changing their meeting time to 8:00 am the second
Tuesday of the month, if that does change you all aware of that.

Mayor Cury - IDA (Attached in the minutes) Terms and Members listed. Motion for members and terms
Doug - | make the motion, Mike seconded the motion.

John - I will mention that Larry Johnson is the Vice-Chairman of the IDA that is missing off the list.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0 Motion carries.

12



Mayor Cury - Zoning Board of Appeals - John do you want to address the vacancy?

John - There is an opening on this Board we did receive a recommendation if the Mayor wants to
mention that name for the opening but will leave up to Council if we want to appoint someone at this
time and hopefully approve the entirety of that Board.

Mayor Cury - | spoke to John this afternoon to make sure and he said Gene Hurst is the Chairman of the
Zoning Board of Appeals and suggested Larry Whited. | have known him for many years which is
irrelevant. He had spoken to Gene and that is a recommendation from Gene Hurst the Chairperson. |
would suggest if Council wants to entertain a motion we could do that now. Has Gene talked to him and
is he willing to serve?

John - [ would have to assume Gene has talked to him since he has recommended him.

Mayor Cury - If Council wants to consider that we follow something we have done recently if that is
Council’s will with the understanding that he will accept it. | think that is the first thing we could do if
that is what Council wants but there may be someone else | do not know. Larry Whited was the

Manager a Lowe’s for years. His wife is Helen Carmody Whited a wonderful gardener.

Mary Ann - | make the motion that we appoint Larry Whited to the vacant seat on the Zoning Board of
Appeals contingent on his acceptance.

Mayor Cury - Larry’s term would end June 20, 2022, is that correct?
John - Yes
Mike - I will second the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call —-Doug- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - We will add Larry Whited into the vacant seat.

John - As soon as | get confirmation from him, | will get the attorney to handle that with the courts, we
have to.

Mayor Cury - Also the financial interest forms they need to fill out.

Mayor Cury - Is there a motion to reappoint Gene Hurst as Chairman (Terms & Offices attached)

13



Richard - | will make that motion, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0 Motion carries.

Michael — Gene’s name is Eugene, for the Circuit Court appointment we need official first names.
Mayor Cury - I do know his name is Eugene H. Hurst, Eugene Hamilton Hurst, Jr.

John - We will reach out and make sure we have the correct full name. The IDA we had several
members resign recently and at some point, we had an additional member, that group had eight (8)
members. Recently Steve Jessee resigned, so there is not a seat to fill just wanted you to be aware that
he had resigned from that position. They have seven (7) members, and the ordinance allows for seven
(7) members.

Mayor Cury - We want to thank everyone for their service for the ones retiring from those positions.

Mayor Cury - Blue Ridge Power — Appointment of Alternate Director — John

Mike - Can I ask a quick question regarding the Commissions and authorities; do we have the right to
increase number on the Commissions?

Michael — Within the Council rights to increase number to make sure you have a quorum.

John - | believe the Rec Commission and most of the others are Ordinance Based, Council would have
the authority as long as it's not listed in the Charter, that would be the only place, but | believe most of
those are created by an Ordinance.

Michael - The Planning Commission is seven (7).

Mayor Cury - I you will look in the Charter of the Planning Commission the word “shall”, the Rec
Commission has slightly different wording.

John - Zoning Board of Appeals is also listed in the Charter as well. Rec Commission is by Ordinance,
they are potentially looking at recommending some changes to Council. | think the IDA is an Ordinance
as well.

Mayor Cury - | don’t remember but | was on Council when it was created.

John - They have had one (1) meeting, they have a new member but only one meeting so it’s kind of
hard to tell.

14



Mike - 1 know everyone has different feelings and things like that | was just curious, quorums are tough.
John - That is why we are potentially looking at a different time.

Mayor Cury - Blue Ridge Power — Appointment of Alternate Director - We have Resolution R-2021-11-
01, (Read the Ordinance). | am fine with that, just want to mention Heather since you are here | would
like to ask you a question, the wording, the term of her office, | think that needs to be changed since you
don’t hold an office. | think term of employment is that OK.

John — Probably
Mike - Why not just remove it?
John - That is sufficient we can do that.

Mayor Cury - Whereas, Town Council desires to appoint Heather Perry as an alternate representative
for the Town of Richlands at the will of the Town Council.

John - Finance Officer that was what | was referring to, | am OK with changing.
Mayor Cury — OK, Is there a motion to adopt R-2021-11-017

Mike - | make the motion to adoption Resolution R-2021-11-01, Mary Ann/Richard seconded the
motion. {(Double Second)

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - Greenspace Update - John

John — As you can tell they have been working on the stage, we run into a couple of hiccups, a couple of
small changes that the architect has been reviewing. | hope T&L will be getting back with the contractor
first part of this week so they can make the necessary changes. It is small things like adding special
brackets using nails instead of screws, nothing major. The next thing when they get to the point they
will have the roof made by a third party company, that company comes in and does their own
measurements to make sure that it will fit. We don’t want them to come in until they are completely
ready. | think the original goal was mid-November we may have to push back a little bit; we will have to
reach out to Cumberland Plateau to give us a little time extension. |think they will be able to see the
progress and they will continue to work with us on that. We have already submitted a Phase 1l grant
application to finish out that project.

15



Doug - What is the total cost of that?
John - I think it is around $105,000/$110,000 something like that.
Doug - What was the cost of the project?

John -1 don’t know the breakdown for the grant versus Town Funding. It has been awhile since I looked
at the figures but | can get those to you.

Doug - How many people can we get into that space?

Mayor Cury - It is an outdoor space and we really don’t know, it is a legitimate question but | don’t
know. )

Doug - How much property does the Town own compared to York Lindsey and the Post Office, is it an
acre?

John - I know we own both sides of the parking lot. We have parking where the stage is at and the other
side as well. | am not sure where the lines between that and the Post Office.

Doug - Maybe at the driveway

John - Maybe that and to the Post Office. | wouldn’t guarantee it but what | believe the last time.

Doug - So the Town owns most of the parking to the Post Office.

Mike - Could we eliminate both sides of the parking lot.

John - At this time where the stage is | think we are just going to keep that part with the Astroturf. We
have to figure out where the playground is going when we get done. The stage is a little bigger than the
original plans it is the intent to leave the other side as parking or drive thru, at this time you know unless
something changes in our plans. You could have food trucks or other things you could park over there,
would benefit being there for an event or things of that nature.

Mayor Cury — Charter, Public Comment and ARPA Workshop (Reschedule)

John - 1 just want to try and reschedule the meeting we were supposed to have last week, we was not
able to have because of not have enough time for public notice. Just wanted to see if there was a date in

the next week or two. | know the holidays are coming up. We need a game plan especially for the ARPA
money. | know it is contingent on how much the Waste Water Treatment Plant upgrades will cost.

16



John - | think we have to give notice of 48 hours before a special meeting.
Mayor Cury - We still require public notice, is two (2) weeks is sufficient?

John - Need to get into the newspaper, if there is a public hearing or something of that nature, the
newspaper only runs once a week, sometimes on Tuesday when we decide to have a meeting we can’t
get it in the paper. Special Call Meeting we can put on Facebook and social media platform and the

website and get the public notice approved but we will definitely need to run by the attorney to make
sure.

Mayor Cury - Can we go ahead and set a tentative date? You can email everyone and let them know it is
a good date. We want to make sure we go by the guidelines and not a hint of impropriety.

Mayor Cury - Work session November 30 at 6:00pm.

Doug - Is there public comment?

Mayor Cury — No, just a work session to talk about Charter Changes, how to receive Public Comment and
ARPA.

Doug - Are we going to have a session where the community can voice their opinion?

Mayor Cury - Would be the last thing on what Council might be proposing in a regular council meeting.
For example | am trying to understand myself while we propose to move some of these topics like
charter changes into a work session, public can attend but we are working amongst ourselves butina

public hearing which is before Council and the public can be notified properly and well in advance of
what is going on.

Doug - Can we set a date?

Mayor Cury - 1think we should do this first and then we would decide when we are going to make the

proposals as a Council as a governing body to the citizens and at that time we can set a public hearing
well in advance and broadcast it widely.

Doug - Let me ask you this, would it be a better idea if we had a public hearing and got comments from
the community before we make proposals from Council. We are getting the cart before the horse.

Mayor Cury - | think you have a really good point, and | won’t deny that from my position at all | don’t

have that kind of power, but | think these are proposals right now. We just in the talking stage amongst
us. We can find something to present, and | think we should definitely take into consideration what the
public has to say. | would think all members of Council would agree with you on that | don’t think itis a
time to do it is premature to set a date right now. I’'m not against it | am just saying timing is important.

17



Doug - | just think and | agree with you | just think it is hard for the Council to make proposals without
comments from the community.

Mayor Cury - | am going help you with this, this is a proposal like in a marriage, just because you
proposal there is no guarantee they are going to say yes.

Doug - The community would be asking and then Council could turn them down. So | think you just
made my point.

Mayor Cury - | lost you win.
Richard - There are timelines set on the Charter and the ARPA.

John — ARPA the money has to be spent by 2025, the workshop is just to get an idea of what Council
may be thinking of what to spend the money on. If you have a public hearing, you would have an idea
right now you have 14 million dollars’ worth of potential projects and we are going to have to narrow
down and get top 5/10 list that is kind of what I hoped to get from Council in the workshop. If we did a
public hearing at least the public would know what kind of ideas that you are looking at going forward
with. The money has to be spent by 2025 some of the money will be spent sooner and some we would
hold off to see potentially what the Water and Wastewater Treatment Plant to see what those overruns
are. Any additional grant funding we may receive for those projects would free up more money for the
other areas that we would like to focus on. The timeline on the Charter, | don’t know if they have given
us a hard deadline, they said the sooner the better.

Mayor Cury - 1 don’t know either or how we are going to figure it out Mike, but | think with the work
session of the general assembly we’re late. | think it’s the 29" of November is when they need
everything. | will find out.

John - Do you want to schedule a tentative work session just for that or just wait until the next session
we are in.

Mayor Cury - I think if we are singling out something it would look odd. I may have some potentially to
add as well that | am working on,

Mike - In regards to what we will be working on in the work session, | may have something | want to talk
to Council about in that workshop in regards to potential......

John - 1 will just have to see how much notice we have to give to change the agenda.

Mayor Cury - Junior Firefighters Program Ordinance (Second Reading) - Mary Ann would you please read
the ordinance please.

18



Mary Ann - Read Ordinance 0-2021-10-01

Mayor Cury - We have the Ordinance before the Town Council, is there a motion to accept this
ordinance,

Michael - Before we do that | was reading over this in the second paragraph “all activities of a Fire
Company duly authorized to operate in the town/county after they:” | don’t think the Town has the
authority in the County, | think it needs to come out as far as grammatically.

John - We provide fire services to the County.

Mike - We provide to the entire west end of the County. It's not working for the County but taking calls
within the county, operating within not working for the county.

Michael — Grammatically on a it shouldn’t end with period a semi-colon or and
Mayor Cury - | think you are right becoming a member of the Fire Company and, shall we add that.

Michael - Instead of supplies, supply is singular and then c: Attains should be Attain, the Town of
Richlands supply.

Mayor Cury - Is there a motion to adopt this Ordinance?

Mike - Understand what we said as far as town/counties is that suffice. Or should we remove County
completely.

Michael - | think it would be better to remove it. It is just a Town Fire Department, may operate in the
County.

Mike — Should we say authorize to operate for the Town?

Mayor Cury - The Fire Chief is here can you step up to the podium so we could hear you.

Keith - Understanding to cover the fire in the western end which accepted them to save your life. As far
as the way it is worded | don’t know, he is the attorney but | do know that Tazewell County’s process
that the following leading to is that some of the County departments have the generous part how legal

they are like we're trying {Could not hear his comments)

Mayor Cury - Do you want to leave “County” or remove “County”? Polled: All Council agreed to leave
the word “County” in the ordinance. Is there a motion to adopt the ordinance?

19



Mary Ann - | make the motion, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - Application Process Discussion, | have not had time to think about it very much. | would
suggest we don’t get too mired in detail right now. We need something to work with. | would suggest to
Council because | don’t know but will give my experience. |told you when | was first appointed to
Council | was appointed. Was your father appointed Richard? We have had lots of appointments in
Council over the years. It follows a various procedure. When | was asked to be on the Council | came to a
meeting and | thought there would just be a done deal. They formed an interview process; | went to the
interviews, and we had private interviews and public interviews. | don’t know how others did all the
private interviews. | will be honest with you the other two (2) applicants far outshined me and | know
that, and | was surprised when they came out of executive session and said | got it. You just never know.
In establishing this process, this is my suggestion and it’s Council’s will that we empower the Town
Manager to develop a process for our consideration that be done for expediency so that so we can
move forward and we can move on this at December meeting. That is just a suggestion. | don’t have any
other suggestions beyond that.

Mike - What is the criteria?

Doug - Could we just let them come and interview them with Council and then vote on it and keep it real
simple?

Mayor Cury - | had two (2) interviews one privately and one was scheduled publicly. | don’t know if that
is precedent setting Doug. That is just a suggestion; we need some format of questions. If we’re to
interview people or just ask them to speak | don’t know.

Mayor Cury - John what is your thought?

John - If you all want an application we can come up with some basic questions it is up to you all and
what you want. If it is something we need to reach out to individuals | will probably need some help
figuring out who they are. Are you going to include the write in candidates or just the ones with the
names on the ballot?

Mayor Cury — Doug’s motion was passed unanimously just to have two (2) people.

Doug - It was the majority.

John - The motion was for all candidates that were that were in those election wasn’t it?

20



Doug — No, just Rick Wood and Laura Mollo.

Doug - It was only those two (2), why couldn’t we just let them come and make their presentation and
then Council vote. That is real simple because we know both candidates and we know them pretty well.
That would be the simplest and the quickest.

Mayor Cury - Mary Ann do you have thoughts on how you would like to see this happen?
Mary Ann - It is such a sudden change it does seem simpler like Doug said.

Mayor Cury - | will suggest this if that is what Council’s will is | don’t know if we need to go into
executive closed session that what happened previously | found it to be curious. | really think it be public
vote that is fine | don’t know legally how we can do that. We're selecting a future member of the
Council does that make sense to you guys. | am questioning what happened in my own time.

Mike - | wasn’t in support of doing this either way, the application process being different | don’t care if
it is public or not | don't think it should be limited.

Mayor Cury - Did we have anybody that voted against it | can’t remember.
Mary Ann - How did they handle?

Michael - They had appointments before but that was before | was with the firm. | don’t have any
personal knowledge on it. 1t is something I can talk to Brad about | am assuming someone from the
office would need to be here November 30" | know that’s going to be a quick turnaround. That might
be something to put on the agenda for that day. At least to advise Council as to or how Tazewell has
done that before.

Doug - Are you talking about the applications?
Michael - Just the appointment process, | am not sure they have done it.

Doug - We need a legal vote majority and what Tazewell does shouldn’t have any bearing on what we
do. Don’t you agree?

Mayor Cury - One thing we have done here for years and | don’t think it’s the right thing we select
people, we select them someone makes a motion to get a vote or not. There should be a slate of
candidates. You vote from that slate just like operating in for an office. The two (2) people on the slate
by the current vote would be Rick Wood and Laura Mollo. That is the slate and people vote onit. It
would be Wood or Mollo it would not be | want to make a motion to appoint Rick Wood and it fails it's a
slate and we made this mistake for years and I've watched | think we should be more cognizant on how
we do it. It is a slate of people. My suggestion to Council is to have a slate if you want them to submit a

21



resume that’s fine If you want them to speak in person that’s fine those are the people on the slate
unless want to amend this and have write ins but then it becomes a major hassle for the Council.

Jeff - What if someone abstains?
Mayor Cury - You should not do it.
Mike - Even with a slate you have to approve.

Mayor Cury - You should not abstain this is not a conflict of interest. This is voting on a member of
Council. It would foul it up, almost look intentional.

Mike - Even with a slate you still have to make a motion.
Mayor Cury — Adopt the slate then you vote. You cast public votes.
Mike - What if you don’t want it.

Mayor Cury - Then it fails. | think we are bound to do something. That is my opinion based on my
opinion tonight.

Doug - If you have a slate the one that has the majority votes wins. It would not be a vote not to take
either one of them. It is a majority if you have a slate.

Mayor Cury - Mary Ann how would you like to see this happen.

Mary Ann - | think the resume .....

Mayor Cury - Do you understand what | mean by slate?

Mary Ann - | do but still a motion would have to be made to accept the winner of the election.

Mayor Cury - Example suppose two (2) people, people a and people b we go around and you say you are
voting for person a or person b, etc. that is my take on it.

Mike - Can | make a motion?
Mayor Cury —Sure
Mike - We open it up and not limit to two (2) people.

Doug - You can’t, you have to take the motion away.

22



Mayor Cury - | will ask for counsel.

Michael - | would think that you would make a motion to reverse the previous vote | think Council has
the ability and it is up to council if they want to do that, to make a motion to disregard the earlier
motion.

Mike - | make the motion that we reverse the motion and vote that we limit to two (2) people.

Mayor Cury — So you are making the motion to nullify the motion.

Mike - | make the motion to nullify the previous motion to limit to two (2) candidates, Mary Ann
seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury - Council back in Session. Thank you very much with your patience of getting Zoom back on
line. We apologize to the public for the technical difficulties.

Mayor Cury - Where we are is in discussion is the process, and | think the Town Manager has a good
suggestion. That we accept letters say why you should be on this Council, what 1 call a resume.

Doug — I think you should address the public and tell them just what happened with the rescinding of
the vote, they know nothing that went on.

Mayor Cury - Earlier in the meeting there was a motion made by Councilman Ratliff and second by
Councilman Brown to have these candidates to fulfill the vacant seat to be included is Rick Wood and
Laura Mollo. Just a few moments ago there was a motion made by Mike Street and second by Mary Ann
Strong to nullify the earlier motion to open the seat up to multiple, anyone who wants to apply. That

motion carried on a 3-2 vote. Does that sum it up?

Doug - Yes

Mayor Cury - | apologize to our citizens of the Town for the technical difficulties so | hope | have
explained satisfactorily. Does that satisfy you Councilman Ratliff on what you think happened the
transactions the motion by Council?

Doug — Yes, 1 would ask that you tell who voted which way.

Mayor Cury - 1 will ask the Clerk to repeat the names, Doug’s original motion who voted and for what

Connie — Doug made the motion to limit the applications to Rick Wood and Laura Mollo, Richard
seconded the motion. Doug-Yes, Jeff-Yes, Mike-No, Mary Ann-No, Richard- Yes. The next motion -

23



Mike made the motion to nullify the first motion and take the limit off to allow more than two (2)
candidates, Mary Ann seconded the motion - Doug-No, Jeff-No, Richard-Yes, Mike-Yes, Mary Ann — Yes.

Mayor Cury - Doug you think that explains to the public?

Doug - Yes, 1 do.

Mayor Cury - Again to the citizens of our Town we apologize for the technical interruptions.

Mayor Cury - To make this process as smooth as possible | will ask that the Town Manager to publish
something as soon as possible entertaining letters of interest and fulfill the seat vacated by Councilman

Plaster.

John - Would you like to have a deadline set on that so we could put in the agenda packets for your
review before our following our Council meeting that we have coming up in December.

Mayor Cury - We should have a deadline for the application. We don’t want to wait until the last minute.
If someone wants to throw their hat into this important event, do you have any thoughts on this. | will
just make an executive decision on this and give you a deadline of two (2) weeks.

John - Just to understand the process as you look at the applications.

Mayor Cury — Not preaching to you guys | am just telling you what | think,

Jeff - We don’t want to come in here and it just be another cluster. Richard could nominate one (1) and
everyone could nominate one, you see what | am saying.

Mayor Cury — Absolutely — We need to be clear in what we are doing — (Ask all Councilmembers if they
are clear on what we are doing.)

Mayor Cury - John will you be with me and | prefer to have a member of the Town so it is just not you
and me making decisions | don’t want that, | would ask Heather and the Clerk to be with us and record
what we do.

John - I regards to the ......

Mayor Cury - | want it in the minutes.

John - The four (4) of us.

Mayor Cury - You and | will decide on a time that is convenient for the two (2) of us, Heather works for
the Town and Connie, | want Heather as a witness and Connie recording the minutes.

24



Heather made comments about applications.

Mayor Cury - Should be submitted to the Town Hall, 200 Washington Square attention to the Town
Manager. Heather, | think it is important you be in this mix it’s like sending an application to the blind
address.

Mayor Cury - After the meeting if you will allow me to do this.

Doug - Before we do that can | inject something.

Mayor Cury —Yes

Doug - Since there has been so much controversy over this decision why couldn’t we order a special
election and let the citizens decide. We could do that how soon. That would be the fair way to handle.
That would be the first thing to do is let the citizens speak. |think all Council should agree, why we
don't let the citizen’s vote.

Rod - | don’t object to it, it certainly would take us off the hook.

Doug — All this controversy would go away.

Mayor Cury - | appreciate your knowledge a lot but it’s not that we don’t value that but it needs to be
procedure and it needs to come from our attorney. | would appreciate it you could research for us now

and we will know.

Doug - While he is researching if we don’t do this there are going to be a lot of people not going to get a
voice and they are going to be very upset with Council.

Mayor Cury - Let’s give him a few minutes. | am not opposed either way the Council wants to go, itis a
Council decision.

John - With respect of time can | go ahead and finish my comments?
Mayor Cury - Yes
John - The Town Hall will be closed on Thursday in honor of Veterans Day.

Michael - | don’t see anything in 30 days but promptly, the court should be prompt.

25



John - If that is something Council is interested in | suggest we continue this meeting so we can get the
information and have that to provide before a decision is made if that is the direct that Council wants to
consider,

Doug - Can | make a motion?

Mayor Cury - Just a minute, the Town Manager is trying to make a suggestion that we recess this
meeting at the end of this meeting, if we entertain the idea of an election, asap.

John - If that is the direction that Council wants to go in.
Doug - You are making a suggestion that we have a prompt election.

John - If Council wants to look into doing a special election we could continue this meeting so we could
go over all the necessary information and Council could make a decision.

Michael - With 55/60 days of an election coming up, | am not comfortable say that it is 30 days it might
be.

Doug —~ What are you comfortable with 45 days?

Doug - | want to make a motion, we rescind the previous vote and that and we order a special election
within 45 days, or 30 whatever Council decides. Have a special election and let the residents decide who
they want to represent them on Council.

Mayor Cury - Motion on the floor for Council to have a special election, is there a second?

Richard — People will wonder why | was on the phone | was doing some research looks like the cost for
special election is $20,000.

Mayor Cury - Do we know that for sure?

Doug - | think the cost is around $10,000. That is a small sum to get representation that the community
wants. We are deciding on five (5) million dollars coming to the Town. We are deciding on millions of
dollars and which way it is to be spent by the Town. | am sure they will want a representative that they
want deciding or help decide on those decisions. Ten thousand dollars is minute compared to a budget
of close to seventeen (17) million.

Mayor Cury - | will try to help you if you don’t mind, Right now we don’t know if it is $10,000 or

$20,000, just know we are guessing. | would suggest if this is something Council would like to entertain
that we follow the Town Manager’s suggestion.

26



Doug - May | make a suggestion.
Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor, is there a second to Doug’s motion?

Doug - | wanted to answer what Richard was saying about the cost. | am pretty sure the cost is around
$10,000 | am sure if the Town doesn’t want to pay that | will come up with the money.

Mayor Cury - That would be improper Doug this is a public election.
Doug — | mean from the community.

Mayor Cury - It would be improper, this is something that government needs to pay. We don’t want to
look at volatile election not many outcomes. | appreciate your generosity but it is not proper.

Mayor Cury - | am suggesting that we follow the Managers advice and if this is something that Council
wants to consider we can recess at the end of this meeting and convene as soon as possible and discuss.

Mayor Cury - Is there a second to Doug’s motion? The motion fails for a second.

Mayor Cury - Let’s try to clean this up right now. What is the will of Council?

Mayor Cury - Jeff do you want to recess to discuss this?

leff - I think that would be wise.

Mayor Cury - Doug?

Doug — Yes, Richard — Yes- Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — yes — Date pending.

Mayor Cury - We will talk about it at the close of session.

Mayor Cury - “Attorney Comments” — Foreclosure Update

Michael — Seven days from the date of this notice may take action to prevent unauthorized access to the
structure as the structure in its current condition poses significant threat to public safety you are also
further notified that if not action is taken by you within 30 days from the date of the return receipt is
received by the Town or by the date of the second publication of this newspaper advertisement the
Town can take this they’re notified that the cost or expenses incurred by the Town in taking such action
creates a lien against such property, until paid shall be chargeable to and responsible for payment you

as the owner, may be collected by the Town as taxes are collected. Please govern yourself accordingly.

Mayor Cury - In essence you are saying?

27



Mayor - The property is on the move.
Mayor Cury - It is not advertised for sale yet?

Michael - It is not going to be for sale, it is going to be a nuisance, whether the property is demolished,
or the true owners do something with it.

Mayor Cury - Alright | folow.

Michael - As far as the Linwood, | don’t have any designation from any authority such as Gary Jackson
that would say that is a dangerous property. If Gary was to come to me and say that we could move
under the nuisance ordinance, however we are not in that position as of yet. | believe the Town
Manager has spoken with Gary regarding that. | not sure if he has come to inspect it or not.

John —When | last spoke to him | understand there is some difference in jurisdiction, it is something we
will have to be able to work out with him.

John - | have reached out to Gary and because of the jurisdiction in Town, | am not sure what his
regulations are and what he is able to provide us in regard to what we will need, we will ook to see
what he can provide some level of service to the Town. We really don’t have the staff that we can state
that it is structurally unsound or unsafe. We can look at it and give our opinion s but we would feel
more comfortable if we had someone with the background as he has, two (2) years back taxes. When |
talked to Brad he was not comfortable at this point but felt that he in December/January the third year
delinquent taxes at that point would easier to make a case filing for the delinquent taxes to foreclose on
that property. Fairfax Avenue we are moving forward always we don’t want the owners to come back
and say hey we're going to fix it up.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member’s Report” — Richard Brown

Richard - | talked with Heather earlier and she had spoken with VRS there is about a $4,000 cost in order
to get the ball running on that, wanted to make sure Council was still OK with moving forward with the
research and moving forward.

Mayor Cury - You are asking Council permission to move forward with Leo’s?

Richard - It is for Fire & Rescue; | had brought it up last month. VRS has to do a study regarding in what
it is going to cost the Town and employees, whatever the cost may be. There is $4,000 cost upfront cost

for them to do the study.

Mayor Cury - Do you want a motion or consensus?

28



Doug - They could do the study for that and | would ask for a consensus to do a study of what it would
take to pay off the VRS for the employees. We owe a quite bit of sum of money. | think that would be
an added to your study so we could pay off for the Town employees. Buying into the VRS, that is a lot of
money. It is costing us a lot of money.

Richard - You are talking about the Buy-Off?

Doug - It is costing the Town quite bit of money each year. | guess you could research that to check and
see. | think we should consider that along with what you are proposing.

Richard — Was there a 10-year thing on that when we did that?

Doug - We did.

Richard - it should be pretty much paid off.

Doug - We still owe quite bit of money. The interest is high on that.
Richard - If you need a motion or consensus on this whichever.

Mayor Cury - | think you need a motion since we are working with money.
Doug - Would you include my suggestion?

Richard - | don’t know what your cost would be.

Mayor Cury — Richard has given us a figure of $4,000. The unknown is what she would have to research.
Heather made remarks.

Doug - It won't take out any extra money to know what the sum is.
Richard - My motion just needs to be just specifically for the $4,000.

Doug - And include the sum maybe for the consideration for the Council to pay off the Town Employees
VRS.

Mayor Cury - | think it needs to be a separate motion. He motion is for $4,000.

Richard - | would like to make a motion that Council approves the quote from VRS for the study of the
Leo’s program for the Fire & Rescue.

29



Doug - | will second the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call —-Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Richard - Prior to tonight normally our December aren’t business oriented because it is Christmas
month. | had planned on making an announcement that | had a prior commitment on December 14
which is our next Council meeting. | don’t know that | can get out of that. | probably won’t be here on
December 14 if you are wanting to vote on a new Councilmember.

Mayor Cury - It is very important that you be here.

Richard - | just wanted to let Council know that | had a prior commitment on the 14",

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Doug Ratliff

Doug — | make a motion that we consider using part of the ARPA money to pay off the Town employees’
debt to VRS. It is costing a considerable amount of money in interest each year. | would help the
employees and the balance of the Town’s budget.

Mayor Cury —So it is consideration? You are saying making us fully funded is that what you are saying?
Doug —Yes

Richard - | think | would have to abstain from that because | am actually part of that.

Mike - I would like to know the numbers before | vote.

Jeff - | second the motion.

Doug - We are just making a motion that you consider.

Doug - If we are going to consider it would be better to a consensus wouldn’t it? You can’t make a
motion to consider. | would like to make a motion and pay it off tonight.

Mayor Cury - Jeff will you withdraw your motion?
Doug - | withdraw my motion.

Jeff - | withdraw my second.

30



Mayor Cury - Is there consensus of the Council to consider Doug’s proposal.
Mayor Cury — Done, Thank you.
Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” Mary Ann Strong

Mary Ann - | would like to recognize Jerry Gilbert our Chief of Police for Veterans Day Program.
Unfortunately, | had previous commitment on another Board that | serve on. 1 couldn’t attend but |
heard wonderful things about it. | am sure Jerry had lots of help so much appreciation to everyone. To
our Town crew that put up the flags and just an extreme amount of gratitude to all our veterans all
across our country. | hope everyone will remember them on Thursday. As far as Christmas | know we

have had some talk about that, John you and Heather probably know, are there plans being made for
the Town employees?

John - We are working on that, we have narrowed down to a couple of days; we are waiting on reply
back from caterers. As soon as we get that information we will get to you all. The plan is to do it during
the day, some of our employees can attend better than in the evenings. If you all are available during
that time, we will get you the information to you so you can attend.

Mary Ann - It’s not so much about us; | just wanted to make sure the employees were recognized. Last
year with Covid we couldn’t really do much, | just thought we should be able to recognize them and
their families for Christmas. | know you all do a great job. As far as Recreation the Haunted Trail was
fantastic, the Town Manager went and | and just heard great reports all over Town. | really want to
thank Jessica at the Rec Park and Ramp-Up Richlands who had a big part in that. Unfortunately they
didn’t get to do two (2) nights because of the weather. 1think they made up for it on Halloween night; it
was very well attended and fun. It was a safe night. A special appreciation to Jerry Vencill, who came
and read some ghost stories. At the Rec Park, volleyball is geared up and going, that is boys and girls
from kindergarten to 12 grade. Councilman Hurst will probably talk about basketball. There is a lot of
good things going on the Rec Park as we move into winter sports. Rec Commission will meet Monday at
6:00pm. | will remind all Rec Commission members to try to attend. We are having problems with
quorum. If anyone listening or anyone on Council knows of anyone who might be interested and would
have the time to put in, please get in touch with me or Jessica at the Rec Park. It is time to start
attending and participating or move on.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Jeff Hurst

Jeff —1 just wanted to reiterate the Veterans Day Program and remember our Veterans on Thursday,
those who are currently serving and those who served and paid the ultimate sacrifice. It is a forgotten
holiday sometimes we need to keep that in mind and move forward. Just a couple things to reiterate
with Mary Ann we just finished our soccer season, volleyball starting and basketball starting, so | don’t
know did they ever decide on guidelines as far as attendance? Maybe that is something to bring up at
Rec Commission. | wanted to know before we do anything with basketball. There was a citizen that

31



contacted me today about a piece of property on South Center Street is becoming an issue with snakes
and some other creatures. Where it is grown up so much it attracts animals It is 515 South Center
Street if someone could look at that. That wanted to see what we could do, worried about the snake
issue and one side some mice or rats or something too. | think the buildings are pretty much gone and
no one has mowed the yard and stuff. If someone could look at that | would appreciate that. The other
thing I had and | don’t know if it has been discussed in previous council or not, Randy Puckett had asked
me the other day about the possibility of naming the bridge on Veterans Drive. | think it was his brother
that was missing in action. | didn’t know if it had ever been discussed about naming the bridge. The
bridge is actually over their old home place and asks me if Council would consider naming that bridge in
his memory. | wanted to bring to Council’s attention.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Mike Street

Mike — Just wanted to let everyone know where we are in the revitalization matching grant so everyone
is on the same page. At current we have applied for the Planning Grant that is a $50,000 to pay for a
consultant that we will put out for bid. This consultant is incredibly important, that is where we are at
currently. The consultant is responsible for providing a master plan and economical structured plan and
budget overview of the entire project. Will also be talking to the property owners and potential
commitments of the project as well as working with the attorneys to handle potential blight issues as
well as potential deed issues. Our next steps after this in November 17" we will know if we were
approved for the Planning Grant. We have not received the Planning Grant yet. Obviously, the project
can’t go forward if we don’t have the Planning Grant for $50,000 because that is the fund for the
consultant to have a plan. We will know November 17%; our November 15" meeting has been cancelled
because we don’t know if we would have the grant. Once we have approval for that grant we will start
our bid process for our consultant which is incredibly important that is the person the business and
property owners as well as Town staff and other folks will be dealing with on a regular basis. As far as
what that looks like ahead if we are approved for the Planning Grant or management team will chose a
consultant based on the bids. We need three (3) bids in regards to our consultants. We can chose wisely
in regards to what that looks like. This is the last task for the management team to complete, the folks
that have been involved with assisting us with the potentially planning grant. That is the last step for
those folks. Our meetings will be a little different from here on out as the landscape of the grant moves
forward the Town staff, Cumberland Plateau District Staff, myself as far as representation from the
Town Council consult a draft for the final grant application. It is a very lengthy process to get to the
final grant application, an incredibly extensive process. These individuals will identify a focus area for
the scope of the grant. The applicant for the grant application and the final application will go to
approval from the Town Council. Nothing will be approved without the Town Council’s approval. It is
important to know there will a area in the Town that we will be focused on specially a lot on the west
end, needs a lot of work. The consultant will be responsible for reaching out to the property owners and
talking about the upgrades to the facades on the front of the buildings. That is a complete matching
grant up to one (1) million dollars. So that is important to know.

32



Doug - How come certain properties were blanked out? There was a map and certain properties were
consider blight, others were completely bypassed because they have no knowledge of it.

Mike - It depends on the project some of it was part of the project before, those were not included
because they were part of the earlier revitalization. Some of them may not have wanted to participate.

Doug - | know several properties were bypassed.
Mike - Do you have specific problems?
Doug - With some of my properties but | don’t need it.

Mike - Are they on Front Street.

Doug — They are on Front and Second Street. How come the Huddle House was listed as a blighted area
it is a new building? A lot of properties not only mine but several other properties were completely
blanked out and not considered a blight area. | saw the map and it was already done. How can you
consider a property in Town not blighted areas and considered a new building like the Huddle House? it
was included in the matching grant application.

Mike - What you are looking at is not an end result. | may have been an earlier map that showed that
property was in fact blighted based on before the Huddle House was there.

Doug - All these properties are the ones you voted on in a meeting.
Mike - We have not identified a final scope.

Doug - All those properties were already identified two (2) months ago, you considerably went down
thru the Town and picked who you wanted for those matching grants and left out who you wanted.

Mike — That is not true.

Doug — And put the Huddle House as a blighted area.

Mike - You are speaking very, very incorrectly, you do it all the time. It is my turn.

Mayor Cury - Doug if you will hold your questions and let Mike finish.

Mike — This is a work in progress, as identified we don’t even have a scope of work of what it looks like
yet, all we are trying to do is get a Planning grant so a consultant can sit down and look at what we have

and go out into these businesses to commit money, we don’t want to miss anybody. There will be an
area that we have to focus on based on the Department of Housing. We won’t identify, it won’t be up

33



to us it will be up to the Department of Housing. They will make that decision in regards to what that
looks like. We will have a final scope we will have a final idea and to what that looks like and we don’t
want to leave anybody out. This is a fantastic project, this is amazing, essentially one million dollars for
our downtown. We won’t leave anybody out if we don’t have to. Anyone that was included before may
or may not be included we don’t know yet. We have not had those discussions yet regarding to what is
going to be in the final project. The consultant will have three (3) months to put together a master plan
and meet with each of the property owners and ask what would you like to put into the project, what
would you like to do in front of your building and let’s figure something out together. Okay | am going to
commit to $10,0000 so they would get $10,000. That would be $20,000 they could spend on their
property. We are still in that process and we can spend up to one million dollars. With the ARPA funds
whatever is left that is not committed, the Town itself, Front Street and whatever street are also
included the Town would have an opportunity to take advantage of the rest of the funds that is not
committed to and equal to the one million dollars. We can make incredible changes to our street scape,
sidewalks and lighting. It is absolutely incredible; it’s a long time away. We will not know if we get the
big grant whenever we submit in the end of July 2022. 1t will be more like August. When Lebanon
submitted they had to go thru it twice, it is incredibly competitive. It is still very premature we are doing
our absolute best to get this for all our downtown. | am pumped about it and glad to be involved can’t
wait to see our progress and | will keep you updated.

Mike - I am currently working on something with legislation potentially as well as the State. The auditor
of public records as well as email. All of Council knows we approved personal property tax because we
have done that, we may have the potential to have some more money for the Town for our general
fund. It is called Virginia Communication Sales Tax. We were not eligible for that in the past. They felt
like we didn’t need since we didn’t have a personal property. This is a pass-thru an opportunity for us to
get money from the State. It may take legislation | am prepared to work with John and | have talked to
him regards to what that looks like. We do have support from our State representatives. They have
agreed that it is fair and is an opportunity for us. There are all kinds of localities around us that have
personal property and have received the communication sales tax. We as people who have cell phones
and landlines we already pay this. It is not given to us as a locality. It is an opportunity for us to have
additional income for the Town, which will be amazing. | am working on that now and will have a better
update. VML is requiring about that now for me. | have Senator Hackworth and his aid Tom Lester ready
to roll as far as legislative services. We can potentially get some extra money there. | don’t ever want to
turn down potential money if it is there. | just wanted the Council to know what | am working on. |
wanted to mention now. It might be something we discuss in our workshop. | will keep you updated in
regards to that. | don’t need assistance or anything like that, | can handle it. Just something | am
looking at and wanted Council to be aware of what that looks like.

Doug — All | want to say there is a lot of merchants in Town that is very upset because their property was
completely without their knowledge was skipped on the map and not considered a blight area but yet
the Huddle House a new building was included in the blight area so they could get a matching grant. All |
am saying they don’t understand how that can occur.

34



Mayor Cury - “Mayor Comments”

Mayor Cury - Veterans Day it was a wonderful program and | will echo what Mary Ann and Jeff said
about Veterans Day, this coming Thursday, November 11. It is always November 11 it is a federal law, it
doesn’t come on Monday or Friday it's whatever November 11t is which is historic. It was a wonderful
program. | just personally thought off the top of my head if | can remember | want to thank the
Richlands High School Band for coming and participating. The ROTC Program from Richlands High
School, Richlands High School History Club, Rusty and Teresa Hess in memory of their son, for providing
dinners in takeout boxes. The guest speaker Mr. Clark, Chief Gilbert for being the master of
ceremonies. | would also like to thank the Veterans Committee which organized the whole program it
was really a good thing. | can personally speak for the History Club this is something that | am passionate
about, the kids came and gave out poppies, normally that is Memorial Day but it was an opportunity to
remember Veterans and the story of the poppies.

Mayor Cury - The FEMA Grant, Ms. Plaster came to talk about it the pre-deadline we are not going to
make it. | think it is very important that we meet with the county some way and our representative to
talk about this grant which could help us a lot with the fiooding and multiple things that could happen
with potential money that would help us with our flooding issues and how it could be tied to other
positive things we are trying to work on such as the walking trail. She sent it to me and we have talked
about it. | will reach out to her to see if we can work with her in some way to tap into this money.

Mayor Cury - The Christmas Parade is coming up, which 1 think is December 2., Ramp- Up is helping with
the parade. The Tree lighting is at 6:00pm.

John - The tree will be lit when the parade begins.

Mayor Cury - It is a momentous occasion and its Christmas, the spirit of Christmas. For everyone
listening let’s celebrate Christmas in Richlands.

Mayor Cury - Richard had mentioned this, it is a good time to work with this, and the fact he will be tied
up or otherwise occupied which is on our next Council date which is December 14. | am trying to
understand and it is vital that we are all here whichever path we choose an election or selection of
Council it is vital that all five members be here if that is the path that we go. | will ask Council’s thoughts
and we will put first on the list he’ll be tied up at 6:00pm afterwards, is that right Richard? Is it possible
you could be here at 5:00pm if we are able to move our Council up an hour and start promptly and have

that first on the agenda? If we go by the selection process by Council instead of election, we don’t know
yet.

Richard - Can we discuss on November 30 at the work session?

Mayor Cury - Would that be time enough to notify the public?

35



Richard — | had made this commitment prior to tonight not realizing the importance of the meeting.

John - We could wait until the end of this meeting to continue this and the next few days if the decision
is to have an election then it becomes irrelevant.

Mayor Cury - We will wait until we decide when we reconvene.

Mayor Cury - | will ask for a motion to go into Executive Closed Session — 2.2-3711(A)(29)- Contract
negotiations, Jonah Project, Property acquisition and 2.2-3711(A)(7) Attorney Client Privilege.

Jeff - | will make the motion, Richard seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —

Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury ~ We need a motion to come back into Open Session and certify it is only to 2.2-3711(A)(29)
and 2.2-3711(A)(7)

Jeff - | make the motion, Mary Ann second the motion.

Mayor Cury - Roll call vote and we are voting on certifying that we only talked about these two (2)
things.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —

Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - We have returned to Open Session and certified. s there any action that needs to be
taken on by Council at this time?

Jeff —1 would like to make a motion that we are going to enter into a property sale and we will be taking
bids for the property. Doug seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 5/0 Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - Before we close this meeting we are going to continue this meeting.

Michael - When is Logan’s term set to expire?

36



Mayor Cury - In 2024 his term officially ends.

Richard — Tomorrow is the deadline for the paper | don’t want to get into another thing where we have
to cancel the meeting because not enough time advertised.

Doug - Why don’t you do it on November 22 to make sure?
Mayor Cury - Attorney, can you let John know in the morning if November 15 is good or hot.

Mayor Cury - One group | failed to mention for the Veterans Ceremony was the VFW. They contribute
enormously to this.

Michael - You can post on the Town’s website; you are just recessing today.
Mayor Cury - Nov. 15 at 5:00pm
Jeff - I make a motion that we recess until Nov. 15 at 5:00pm, Richard second the motion.

Mayor Cury - All agree say |, all opposed say no - All “1” - Motion carries

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk

37






The Richlands Town Council reconvened in the Richlands Council Chambers on November 15, 2021, at
5:00 pm, having recessed from its regular meeting held on November 9, 2021, with the following
present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff, Jeff Hurst
Mike Street, Richard Brown

Town Attorney: Brad Pyott, Michael Thomas

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Cury - This is the Recessed Council meeting that we began on Tuesday November 9. Mayor went
over the agenda for tonight’s meeting.

Mayor Cury — Town Manager’s Report
John —We had a couple of updates since our last meeting on the Greenway Space, the grant we applied
for $50,000 thru Cumberland Plateau we were awarded the grant for Phase |l of the stage, we will start

on Phase Il as soon as we are finished with Phase |.

John - We are wanting to do a Small Business Christmas, for four (4) weeks leading up to Christmas. |
would like to get consensus from Council to use $400 from the Town Event’s budget.

Mike - What is it for?

John — We want to put tickets at the place of business, when someone comes into their business they
get a ticket if they spend $20 or more. They will put their information on the ticket and they will be in a
drawing the following week for a $100 gift card from a business they choose downtown.

Mike - You will do it for four (4) weeks?

Mayor Cury - Who is going to pick up the tickets?

John — Ashley will pick up the tickets.

Rusty Hess - | will donate the $400.



Mayor Cury - The money should come from the Town, | don’t want any conflict of interest. Thank you so
much for your offer. | think we need a motion if the Council sees fit.

Mike - | make the motion that we donate $400 to Small Business Christmas, Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries — 5/0.

John — Last month the Planning Commission didn’t have a quorum for the Public Hearing so they are
working on scheduling the Public Hearing on November 30 at 7:00pm. They will be able to make a
recommendation based on the vote from last Council meeting. There are no issues or concerns with it.
The Bad Axery Company will be granted their Conditional Use Permit.

Mayor Cury — The Planning Commission will hold their Public Hearing on November 30 at 7:00pm here
at the Council Chambers. That is regarding the potential new business Bad Axery, LLC.

John - IDA - They will meet at 6:00pm first Tuesday of the month before the Planning Commission. At
the last meeting we approved the members. They also decided when to have their meetings. They will
meet at 6:00pm first Tuesday of the month before the Planning Commission. If there is anything they
would like to discuss that would impact the Planning Commission they can transition and have those
conversations with them as well. Zoning Board - Larry has accepted the appointment. We will get his
information and have him added to the Board.

John- The last thing | had is the Drive-Thru we had a $30,000 budget of Cares Act funding that we have
to spend by December. The bid came in at $84,000 which is quite a bit more than we had budgeted. If
Council wants to move forward with it, we would have to use AARP funding to do it, or we can do
something to benefit our employees. They weren’t able to take off time or get additional benefits during
Covid. If that is something you would like to do as an extra benefit to our employees especially now
since Christmas is coming up, it would be perfect time to do something of that nature.

Mayor Cury - Is the $30,000 Cares Money?

John - It is Cares Money

Mayor Cury — Did we discuss not doing the Drive-Thru?

John - We have not discussed either option.

Mayor Cury - My personal take on this and | will refer to Council, | am not against any of these things |
think before we allocate money for any of these things, an additional Xmas bonus, we will have



discussion from Council. | suggest that we defer to later in the meeting. We will move to item “b”
under Agenda Items.

Mayor Cury - Discussion on Vacant Council Seat - | would like to refresh everyone’s memory and if
anyone wasn’t here what we did at the last Council meeting. Councilman Plaster resigned his seat so
that leaves a vacant seat. Council has several options, and it will be Council decision on how they want
to proceed or not. We will have Council discussion and Council decision on what they would like to do. |
know a lot of people are here tonight. | want to say thank you for coming, don’t matter how you feel
about these issues your presence tells us you are interested in what we are doing and how we proceed
with this position. Thank you for coming. I am very aware that people have different feelings on it and
want everyone to know we appreciate the process and the fact that you have a voice don’t matter what
side you are on. | want to say | appreciate in advance just as you are right now kind, considerate,
respective and | cannot say thank you enough. That being said let’s proceed.

Doug - | would like to make a motion since you have so many citizens here that we allow them to speak
two (2) or three {(3) minutes on the process on how they would want us to pick a new Councilmember.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to allow the citizens to speak three {3) minutes if we allow
them to have citizens comment regarding the vacant Council seat, is that correct.

Doug ~ Yes

Mayor Cury - That will need a second before we proceed. Having no second the motion dies due to lack
of second.

Mayor Cury - Let’s move forward with the vacant Council seat. There were several options that were
discussed last time, | don’t know if it was for or against anybody, | want to remain neutral | want to
conduct fair for everybody and | intend on doing that. Council was not sure what to do, there were many
recommendations, but no decisions were made. That is why we are meeting tonight along with the
considerations to add the drive thru and closed session. We are open with Councilmembers on how to
proceed appropriately. Thank you, Council.

Doug - | would like to make a motion we hold a special election within 30 days to elect a new
Councilmember.

Mayor Cury — Your motion is to hold a special election within 30 days.

Doug — | checked with Brain and it can be done within 30 days, will give citizens a say instead of letting
Council just appoint who they would like.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion made and | want clarification from our attorneys on what we are allowed
to do regarding a special election since that is the topic right now. Can | have some help please?

3



Brad —Charter refers to any type of vacancy being handled by general law no real direction specifically
from your Charter. State codes has two specific code sections under 24.2-226. You have to petition the
court first for a Writ of Election so that has to happen within 15 days from Mr. Plaster’s resignation
which | understand occurred on November 9. You need to have something filed with Circuit Court, that
is mandatory within 15 days which would be by the 24™. [ think the Circuit Court may be closed on the
24"™ so0 may have to be on 23" or possibly held over until Monday regardless that has to be done within
45 days. Appointing that is discretionary, they do not have do that if they do no appoint there is also
possibility that the Circuit Court could appoint but this is also discretionary and it’s not mandatory
discretionary from the court action not going to take up that action unilaterally there would have to be
some type of petition filed and there is no guarantee they would do anything. Writ of Election needs to
be set with statutory requirements to set the election then for a special election at the November
election but not necessarily required it's discretionary again with the court. The latest possible date
they could do that is the next general election which will be next November or they set an election.
Spoke with Mr. Earls as well about the parameters, could be a special election held within 30 days if the
Circuit Court set that election within 30 days, two scheduling drawbacks to that.

Mayor Cury - Just to make sure | understand with 30 days of the Court’s decision.

Brad — Court sets date that could happen within 30 days, closest date we could follow if we filed it
tomorrow.

Mayor Cury — | was thinking about the motion of Councilman Ratliff.

Brad - You don’t want to mistake in terms of the filing within 30 days; court set a date that could occur
within 30 day window. According to Mr. Earls earliest possible date they could have would be
December 28™. They are required to have offices open two (2) prior Saturdays prior to that election
being on the 28™ that would mean the registrar’s office would have to be open on Christmas day and
seven (7) days before that, it would also limit the window for applications for qualifications in terms of
getting the necessary signatures and five (5) days to do that, it will be limited because of have the
election so soon.

Mayor Cury — Everyone understand as well as we can on what we are saying.
Doug - | do, should | amend my motion to within 45 days?

Brad — Two different dates that you are referencing here, 45 discretionary, the Council has 45 days from
the date of the resignation to make a nomination and so actually have to appoint someone that would
fill the unexpired term, but the remainder of the time that they have until the next election can be set
within 30 days, 45 days becomes meaningless if the court agrees with that since that day if you set the
election. Let’s say you make the request of the court for the Writ of Election and it’s to be held on the
first Tuesday in April, that appointment the Council makes has to be made within the 45 days and it

4



would only last until the election. The resignation of Councilman Plaster which was the night of
November 9. The Council has 45 days to make a selection and make an appointment as a temporary
appointment and if they don’t come up with a name as a majority of three (3) out of five (5) that what
you have left. The Circuit Court could appoint, again that appointment could only be temporary
appointment until the election is held either at the next general election or a special election in
November or at the special election solely on its own. Sometime between now and next open.

Doug - My thoughts were | didn’t want to interfere with Christmas and if we set it for 45 days that would
mean that the Registrar’s Office would not have to be open on Christmas Day. My other thought is you
said we could appoint someone. We don’t have to because we went for a whole year without
appointing anyone.

Brad - That is correct, that is discretionary.

Doug - 1 just thought on my motion can | amend it?

Mayor Cury - You can since we haven't seconded it.

Doug — I amend my motion to set the election for 45 days and we not appoint anyone until after with
the court’s discretion.

Mayor Cury - Doug let me think a few minutes, trying to help understand how this motion should be
worded, not against anything just need to understand what you are saying. Petition the court is that the
way you have to do that.

Brad — | recommend that you go ahead and petition the court between now and November 24%",

Mayor Cury - | just wanted to understand the law and we are operating within the bounds of the law
and make sure any motions are clear before we have anything on the floor does that make sense.

Doug - | make the motion that we petition the court within 15 days, within 45 days and that we not
appoint anyone until after the ... no need to appoint anyone.

Mayor Cury - Is that simple enough just keep it simple.

Doug - I make the motion to petition the Court to hold an election within 45 days.
Mayor Cury - That is the motion from Councilman Ratliff.

Mayor Cury - Madam Clerk did you get the motion? Please read the motion.

Connie — Doug made the motion to petition the court to hold a special election within 45 days.

5



Mayor Cury —Is that correct?

Doug - Yes

Mayor Cury — Madam Clerk read the motion again.

Connie - Doug made the motion to petition the court to hold a special election within 45 days.

Mayor Cury - Is that correct?

Doug — Correct

Mayor Cury - We have a motion on the floor.

Brad - Is still going to put you in that window where you will require the Registrar’s office to be open
two (2) Saturdays before, if you petition the court tomorrow within 45 days, it has to be done on a
Tuesday, if you follow the protocol you are still going to end up with an election that is going to
require...., January 4™ or December 28" is your last Tuesday in December and your first Tuesday in
January. Either one of those days you chose they are working on Christmas Day and New Year’s Day.
Sounds like you are trying to avoid those holidays you are looking at the earliest possible Election Day
would be January 11 still puts you on the first for being there as on a Saturday, January 18 you are going
to avoid the Registrar’s office from being open on a holiday.

Mayor Cury - We just want to make sure we understand how these things are working.

Brad - Has to be on a Tuesday, election statutes require that, and have to be open two (2) Saturdays
prior to that for any type of comments or questions, the 18" is going to be the first

Doug - Should my motion say we petition to court to hold the election January 18 would that be simpler.
Brad - In Writ of Election, that request that date to be used.

Doug - | don’t want to see the Registrar work on Christmas or New Year's.

Mayor Cury - That is where | was headed, you want to rethink a minute it is your motion.

Doug - I make the motion that we petition the court to hold a special election to fill the vacancy January
18",

Mayor Cury — Madam Clerk did you get the new motion?



Connie ~ Doug made the motion to petition the court to hold a special election to fill the vacancy on
January 18,

Mayor Cury - Does that satisfy you Doug, is that what you are saying?

Doug — it does.

Brad — January 18", 2022, special election has an additional cost, if you have a special election on the
same day as the general election it all gets folded in the same terms of having an election. Example
Town of Richlands have election on the first of November opposing to having the first Tuesday in
January or March/April, looking at an additional cost between five and six thousand dollars that the

Town would have to pay in terms of election official ballot training.

Mayor Cury - | appreciate that very much. in consideration of this motion if members of Council want to
consider and all the facets that be involved is that correct? Doug are you with what he is saying and
what | am saying.

Doug - Yes

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to petition the court to hold a special election on January
18, 2022.

Connie — Doug has a motion on the floor to petition the court to hold a special election to fill the
vacancy on January 18", 2022,

Mayor Cury - Is there a second to the motion?

Mayor Cury — Order in the room, order from audience in the Council Room. Sergeant-at-Arms please
come in the room.

Doug - Can | make a motion?
Mayor Cury — You may.

Doug - My motion is that we appoint the second runner up in the previous election namely Laura Mollo
to the empty seat on Council.

Connie - We have a motion on the floor.

Mayor Cury - Motion died due to lack of second.



Doug - My motion is that we appoint the second runner up in the previous election namely Laura Mollo
to the empty seat on Council.

Mayor Cury - There is a mation on the floor to appoint Laura Mollo to the Council is that correct?
Doug — Correct
Mayor Cury —Is there a second to the motion? Being no second the motion fails.

Mayor Cury ~ | am going to defer to Council for other ways to proceed.

Mary Ann - 1 would like to make the motion to appoint Darrell Addison to the vacant seat of the Town
Council.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to appoint Darrell Addison to fulfill the vacant seat of
Councilman Plaster. Is there a second to the motion?

Jeff — | second the motion.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor it is movement of Council, a formal motion. Mary Ann made
the motion, Jeff second the motion. Is there any discussion by Council on this motion?

Doug - Darrell Addison is a great person and | respect him, but he didn’t run in the election Ms. Mollo
ran in the election and she deserved to be appointed.

Mayor Cury - Any other discussion by Members of Council?
Richard - At the last meeting on November 9™ it is my understanding that we had made a motion,
seconded and passed that we would take applications for the seat, do we need to recall that motion

before we do anything with this, | think we are going above what our last direction of Council.

Mayor Cury — Councilman Brown has brought up that a motion was made, can you refer back to the
minutes Madam Clerk. We will give her a minute to read back exactly what we said.

Doug - | don’t think it passed, did it?
Richard - | had made a motion with Councilman Ratliff so | think so for a second Councilman Ratliff
limited to two (2) prior elections which was Rick Wood and Ms. Mollo. That motion was nullified with a

vote to open for all applications and after that motion passed best | can remember.

Doug - If we set to do applications, I'm not sure; I think we just opened it up. | don’t think it was a
motion.



Mayor Cury - Best | can remember we need a motion to read what did pass, generally accepted an
application process but | don’t know that, so to say generally understood, it is not a good thing in formal
business.

Mayor Cury - Let me clarify something we are waiting for Madam Clerk Connie to find the motion may
take her a few minutes; we did a lot of work at the last meeting. | think Council basically has three (3)
options, to appoint, not to appoint or to have a special election. Would that be a fair thing to say?

Brad - You still have to have the election. it's not an option whether you will have the election or not,
the other discretionary question is whether or not they appoint someone to fill seat until the special
election occurs.

Mayor Cury — Okay, | follow you now. The special election is either held at a near future date such
January 18, January 31 or November because it will be a special election to fill the vacated seat by
Councilman Plaster is that correct?

Brad - That is right.

Mayor Cury - | appreciate that.
Doug - May | add something to that.
Mayor Cury —Sure

Doug — | talked to Brian and if we have the election in November along with the other election it is going
to be very confusing, because it is sort of like two (2) elections, one to fill the vacant seat and the other
three (3) members who are coming up, he said it would be very confusing to have the election at the
same time as the general election, if | may add that.

Brad - | spoke to Mr. Earls (County Registrar) on that point; if the special election were held next
November, there would be two (2) separate measures on the ballot. There would be a general election
for the three (3) seats, and a special election for the vacated seat of Plaster. As far as being confusing,
the ballot would include two (2) separate votes, one (1) for the top three (3) vote getters (general), and
the other just the top vote getter (special).

Doug - | think it would be very confusing to the public. That is why | made the motion that we have a
special election before that time to fill the vacancy, so it won’t be so confusing in November.

Connie — As for the motions made during the November 9 meeting, the first motion, Doug made the
motion to put Laura Mollo into the Council seat into Logan Plaster’s seat, Jeff Hurst seconded the
motion. The motion failed.



Connie - Mike made the motion to have an official application process, Mary Ann seconded the motion,
and motion passed, 5-0.

Doug - It was not 5-0.

Connie - Everyone agreed to the application process, and then you made a motion.
Doug — | voted No.

Connie — | have not typed the minutes yet, | can double check.

Connie - The next motion you made was to limit to Mr. Woods and Ms. Mollo that was 3/2. Three was
“yes”, two was “no”.

Doug — That motion passed and then Mr. Street nullified that vote or something.

Connie —Yes, Mike made the motion to nullify that and Mary Ann second the motion. That was two
“no” and three “yes”. That is where it ended.

Mayor Cury — To nullify

Connie — Yes, three “yes” to nullify and two “no”. The next comments were to talk about an application
process for the seat. A motion wasn’t made after that but agreed to have a special meeting.

Mayor Cury - | appreciate it and | want to be clear, so everyone will know the direction of the Council,
the motion to nullify | think, and | want to be corrected by the Clerk, the motion to nullify was to nullify
the limitation of two (2) people. Is that correct, does member of Council understand what is going on
here? Members of the audience do you follow the history what went on last week? | want to be clear
what the motions were stated. Members of Council do you agree this was recorded accurately? We
have to approve in a formal way we have not done that, but | am asking for general consensus.

Mayor Cury - Any action of Council that is what | am looking for?

Doug - Can | make a motion?

Mayor Cury - We have motion on the floor, { am losing track of this. We have a motion on the floor
right now made by Mary Ann and seconded by Jeff to appoint Darrell Addison, any further discussion on

this motion. Roll Call Vote?

Connie - Doug — Not any reflection on Darrell Addison, he would be a fine person on Council but in all
fairness to Ms. Mollo and running in the election | must vote “No”, Jeff — Yes, Mike — No, Mary Ann —

10



Yes, Richard — I am struggling that we left this with an application process, it bothers me we haven’t
done what we said we were going to do whether the public agrees with it or not, even though it was
not in the form of a motion a consensus or whatever you want to call it we agreed to an application
process, that is why | am struggling. | know Mr. Addison and | know all these other people, but | think
what happens if we have someone that comes out of the woodworks and blow everyone out of the
water and would make a great councilmember that what | struggle with. Even though we have made the
motion and voted there is still some discussion. | wish | knew Mr. Addison intent if he planned on
running for the election if he is appointed the seat, having said that | will announce | am not running
again for re-election, and 1 will vote “yes” to appointment, so the Motion carries.

Mayor Cury - Madam please read who vote “yes” and who voted “no” for the record.

Connie - Doug — No, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike-No, Mary Ann- Yes

Mayor Cury - Motion carries Thank you members of Council and the community.

Mayor Cury - Next on the agenda is Item No. VI.

Doug - | make a motion to petition the court to have a special election in 45 days to fill the seat that
Darrell Addison....

Mayor Cury — 1 think the 45 days was a hiccup earlier.

Doug — I make the motion we petition the court to have a special election to fill the seat that Darrell
Addison is taking on January 18,

Mayor Cury — Motion on the floor to petition the court have a special election on January 18", is that
correct?

Doug - Yes, Sir

Connie — Motion was made to petition the court to have a special election on January 18", 2022 to fill
the vacancy of Darrell Addison.

Connie - To fill seat vacated by Logan Plaster.

Connie — Motion is to petition the court to have a special election on January 18, 2022 to fill the seat of
the vacated by Logan Plaster. s that correct?

Mavyor Cury — Doug is that your motion?

Doug - Yes, Mayor

11



Mayor Cury - Motion on the floor.

Jeff — | like the idea of a separate election from doing it at the general election time. I’'m not crazy over
the 18" date just because of several factors that can happen in January. Having an election in January
opposed to anytime of the year, you know with the weather or any elements a snowstorm were to hit
because you know | think last year at Christmas we had six (6) inches of snow if we are looking at 28",
Would potentially hamper citizens from being able to get out to vote. | think we owe it to them to have
some type time frame where there is a shot for good weather and good voter turnout that’s what | am
concerned about.

Doug — What about March 15%?

Mayor Cury — | don’t know what day that is, need clarification?

Doug — | withdraw my motion and make a new motion.

Doug — 1 make a motion we petition the court to have a special election March 1%, to fil the vacancy that
Logan Plaster vacated.

_ Jeff — | seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury — Wait unit its ready.

Connie — Doug made the motion to petition the court to have a special election on March 1%, 2022, to
fill the vacant seat of Logan Plaster. Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury — Councilman Ratliff made the motion and seconded by Councilman Hurst, any discussion
from Councilmembers?

Mary Ann - | have a question for the Attorney, would it still be a special election if we waited until the
November normal election, it would save the Town $5,000 to $7,000 dollars if it’s done in that manner?

Brad — Correct

Mary Ann — That is what we previously did when we appointed Councilman Hurst and he ran for that
seat against other interested parties.

Doug — We allotted $134,000 for Health Insurance and Council don’t want to spend five $5000 on a
special election, Oh my gosh. | urge Council to spend $5000 to give the citizens a voice in the election.

John - $134,000 was not allocated for insurance just for clarification.

12



Doug - | beg your pardon it was on your budget.

John - That was an estimate for worst case scenario if each Councilmember had a family plan.

Doug — But it was budgeted.

John - It was not.

Doug — On average your insurance cost $9000.

Mary Ann - $7200

Doug - That is $7,200 we are talking $5,000.

Mayor Cury - | am listening but | realize we are not going into discussion about the health insurance cost

the motion is about having an special election on March 1, so | would ask Council to direct their
comments toward that.

Doug - You did budget $134,000 if it was the worst case scenario or not it was budgeted $134,000
Mayor Cury —~ Members of the audience, | am the type of person that can only do one thing at a time.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to have a special election on March 1, the first to fill the
vacancy that was vacated by Councilman Plaster. The health insurance is not relevant to what we are
discussing | appreciate what you are saying.

Mike - | have been pretty quiet here | think it is important that we give our citizens fair opportunity to
vote. What that looks like in my mind is a fair vote and maybe a lot of people that are not informed of
the in’s and out’s, | appreciate everyone here but there are people who are not here. The November
election they know that Tuesday is the day they vote. If is about full representation what this Town is
and what this Town can do. | welcome anybody that gets that seat. | think it is fair to all citizens. Just a
comment to say | support a general election in November. 1think that is the best representation for the
Town and the citizens and to be fair to all citizens.

Mary Ann - | do agree with Councilman Street but | have a question. There is a Primary Election in June,
can we have this election in June and not cost the Town ...

Brad — There are certain protocols. You cannot have a special election related to a primary election, we
did not have this specific conversation with Brian, | don’t know if we can piggyback.

13



Brad - Upon receiving the petition or upon its own motion the court shall issue the rewarding election
properly and shall order the special election to be held on the date of the next general election in
November or scheduled by law to be filled in but that doesn’t happen here anyway it’s been changed in
2012. However the governing body or requested this petition a different date for the election the court
shall order the special election be held on that date so long a day requested proceeds the date of the
next general election in November and coupling with the provisions of Section 24.2682 which restricts
that you cannot have a special election on the same day as a primary election.

Mayor Cury — Any further discussion from members of Council?

Connie — Doug made the motion to petition the court to have a special election on March 1, 2022 to fill
the vacancy of Logan Plaster.

Connie — Doug — Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard- No, Mike-No, Mary Ann — No - Motion fails

Mike — Mayor | would like to make a motion.

Mike - | would like to make the motion that we petition the court to add the seat of Logan Plaster to the
general election in November, to petition the court for a special election to occur with the general

election in November. Do | need to word differently?

Mike - I make a motion to have a special election with the general election in November 2022, petition
the court for a Writ of election.

Mayor Cury - To fill the vacant seat, is that correct? Please read one more time so Council is clear on
what the motion is.

Connie - Mike made the motion to petition the court for a special election to occur with the general
election on November 22, 2022, to fill the vacant seat of Logan Plaster.

Mayor Cury - Would it be November 22" or November 8.
Brad -The Council appointment is a temporary position; it is filled temporarily until the election can be
held as a special election. The appointment is only good from the time of the actual appointment

through the date of the special election and the qualification of the election winner.

Mayor Cury - So we leave Logan Plaster’s name out of this? Should Logan Plaster’s name be removed
from this motion?

Mayor Cury - | wanted to make sure we had it right and following with the bounds of the law, Connie
please read on more time please.

14



Connie - Mike made the motion to petition the court for a special election with the general election on
November 8, 2022, to fill the vacant seat of Logan Plaster.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor to petition the court for a special election to be held on
November 8, 2022, to fill the remaining term of the seat vacated by Logan Plaster.

Mary Ann - | seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury - Mike makes the motion, Mary Ann seconds the motion. Any discussion at this time?

Doug - This is no reflection on Mr. Addison he is a fine person and | respect him a great deal but to me
every day that we put off the special election that’s a day that the citizens did not have their voice and
everything that Mr. Addison votes on is .... The citizens will of him being there when we need to hold a
special election as quickly as possible. | am sure since Ms. Mollo came in second, | think all the citizens
are going to remember this.

Mayor Cury — Thank you very much, any further discussion? Since there is no more discussion, | will ask
the Clerk for a roll call vote.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 4/1

Mayor Cury - Has Council fulfilled its obligation to properly fill this vacancy at this point in time?
Brad — Yes, | will make sure that we have the petition for the Writ drafted by tomorrow.

Mayor Cury - Thank you

Mayor Cury — Next on the agenda is 5(b) Drive-Thru — To refresh everyone, the reason that was on the

agenda, | thought we need to dispense with this important business and then we could talk about the
Drive Thru.

Mayor Cury — 10 minute Recess
Mayor Cury - Back from Recess, John can you discuss the Drive- Thru

John - Essentially we had about $30,000 left from the Cares Act money; we spent some on architectural
firm to give us some specs so we could put out for bids. When the bids come in it was around double
what we anticipated, then when we first started looking at the Drive Thru, construction prices continue
to increase which now it is around $80,000. We felt like it may not be the best use of the money so but
before we make a decision wanted to touch base with Council, we have the plans we can always go back

15



at a later date maybe construction prices will go down. We were told it would be $40,000 project and
now it is double. Need some direction on how we spend the Cares money, we only have until December
to spend the money? We came up with one idea, to do something for the employees especially with
our Christmas Banquet coming up this Friday.

Mayor Cury - My first thing is | don’t think construction prices will ever come down.
Jeff - Can we do in two (2) Phases, maybe Phase | use that money for that purpose and complete it?

John - I don’t know, | feel like it is the boring and the cutting the hole in the building, | can’t think of any
way you could break that up.

Mike - Let’s talk about the logistics of it, $84,000 what is the usage that is where my mind goes given the
amount of the people that come in and the amount that pay on line OR on the phone. My biggest
question is the $84,000 does it equal the value for what it provides. Do we have a percentage of
Richlands customers that would use the Drive Thru?

John - | will give you my thoughts and | will refer to Heather, she is updated more than | am. We are
trying to transition away from credit card payments it is hard to tell how many people come in the front
door that would use the Drive Thru. With the limited staff we have up front you have the phone ringing
somebody at the front door and someone at the Drive Thru. You would have so many avenues coming
atyou. | feel our quality of service and our response could suffer but to guess the percentage of how
many would use the drive thru | would have to defer. (Heather commented)

Mayor Cury - What kind of services could our community use the Drive-Thru for? {Heather commented)
| just wanted to understand.

Mike - My next questions, | just want to understand, primary need or want or thought process for this
Drive Thru was because of pandemic, right? John do we feel like we are more prepared in whatever the
next pandemic will be, do we feel like the Drive Thru is necessary for the next pandemic or we are more
prepared for the next one.

John - 1 am not sure, we were not prepared for this one and you really don’t know what will be next and
how it will affect our area that is difficult to answer. We put up the glass have limit access and they ring
the doorbell, this is what we implemented in the past. We can quickly switch back from open to closed.
Up to Council on how we handle the next pandemic and how comfortable you would all be with
potentially the next pandemic or whatever it may be that this Town faces.

Mike - Did we every completely shut down with our employees or have has someone always been here.

John - Since | have been here. .

16



Mike - Full Staff thru the entire pandemic?

Mayor Cury - Any thoughts on the Drive-Thru? John you are asking Council whether to use the Cares
money toward the drive thru plus the additional funds it is going to cost because of the overage that
was not expected.

John — Correct

Mayor Cury —Suggested to take the Cares money $30,000 and give it to our employees for Christmas is
that correct.

John - that is the recommendation

Mike - Did we ever give any type of compensation for anyone here during Covid? (Heather commented)
Jeff - Just let the Manager use it at his discretion.

Richard - Ask Mr. Young what the County did for the employees?

Mr. Young - This best of my recollection the meeting last December | believe we gave our EMT’s and the
our Sheriff and deputies, seems like EMT got $1000 and the Deputies’ $500 something like that. We
focused on EMT’s we felt like they had the most exposure other personnel other than EMT’s and
Deputies | don’t recall giving them anything. Tomorrow night | have a proposal to the Board to give our

Emergency Management Personnel a stipend for managing this 20 month long emergency.

Heather commented

Mary Ann - | make a motion that we allow our Town Manager to use the $30,000 Cares Act money at
his discretion in accordance to the Cares Act guidelines , Mike seconded the motion.

Connie - Mary Ann made the motion to allow the Town Manager to use the $30,000 .......
John - For clarification the reminder is $36,000/$37,000

Connie- Mary Ann made the motion to allow the Town Manager to use the remaining Cares Act funds at
his discretion in accordance to the guidelines.

Mary Ann — Should we say Care Acts funds approximately $36,000?
Mary Ann - Connie, after Cares Act funds jut put approximately $36,000 and the rest is fine.

Mayor Cury - We have a motion and a second on the floor.

17



Connie — Roll Call - Doug ~ Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard — 2.2-3115 personal interest in this transaction, in case
the Town Manager at his discretion is to distribute amongst Town employees, fulltime employees | will
abstain, Mary Ann — yes, Mike-Yes Motion carries — 4/-1 (Abstain)

Mayor Cury - We will go into Executive Closed Session pursuant to VA Code Sections 2.2-3711 (A) (29)
Contract Negotiations (Jonah Project) and 2.2-3711(A) (7) Attorney Client Privilege (Economic
Development).

Mayor Cury - Do | hear a motion to go into “Closed Session” for these Code Sections?

Richard — | make a motion to go into “Closed Session”, Mike seconded the motion.

IIIII

Mayor Cury — All in favor say “I”, any opposed? Motion carries unanimously.

Mayor Cury - | will ask the Sergeant-at-Arms to ask people to leave who are not part of this discussion.
Thank you.

Mayor Cury - Council back in Session -l will entertain a motion for all Councilmembers to vote to come
back into session with each vote they are certifying that nothing was discussed in “Closed Session”
other than 2.2-3711(A)(29)- Contract Negotiations (Jonah Project) and 2.2-3711 (A)(7)- Attorney Client
Privilege (Economic Development). Roll Call Vote

Connie - Doug — Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard — Yes, Mike-Yes — Mary Ann — Yes

Mayor Cury — Motion Carries

Mayor Cury —Is there any action that Council would like to take?

Jeff - 1 would like to make a motion that we have our Town Manager John O’Daniel to sign a MOU for
the water capacity allocation option between the Town of Richlands and Tazewell County Public Service
Authority.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion on the floor is there a second?

Mike — 1 will second the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? No discussion, roll call vote
please.

Connie ~ Doug — (see below)

18



Doug - We have worked on this project since 2013 it is vital for the County and the Town, about nine (9)
months ago | asked the Council that we involve our attorneys, Council or an expert on water rights and
how it would impact Richlands, | was turned down. The last two (2) or three (3) months | have been
kept in the dark, don’t know anything about the contract or very little. Since | don’t know that much
about the contract | am going to “Abstain” simply because | don’t want to vote “No” because | don’t
want to hurt the project, | am for the project. 1 am simply voting, “l Abstain” because | am afraid this

contract, since it was not negotiated professionally, it is going to cause grief to Richlands at a later date,
so | abstain.

Mayor Cury — Continue with the roll call vote please.

Brad — Before the roll call vote, required from the Council, Members of Council excusing Councilman
Ratliff from voting on this measure.

Mike — 1 am not excusing him.
Mary Ann - | also will not excuse him because | think he should have a valid reason.
Doug - I just give you a valid reason.

Mike - You were given all these emails which | can prove you saw and had time to look at these
agreements and give your opinion three (3) times, but apparently you are too busy doing car washes
and that is fine you are a busy man.

Brad — Under the Charter, “Every member, when present when a question is put, shall vote unless
excused by the Council”. Mr. Ratliff obviously thinks he wants to abstain. “But no member who has a

personal or financial interest in the result of any ordinance or resolution before the Council shall vote
thereon.”

Mayor Cury - Brad, All we need is for Councilmembers to say they allow him to abstain or not, no other
questions or statements.

Mayor Cury — Abstain or Not? Mary Ann — No, Mike — No, Richard- Continue to abstain because of my
relationship with the Town of Richlands Police Department and the VA Code requires me to abstain
from certain things if | have a personal interest. If Councilman Ratliff can prove that there’s personal
interest in his vote | will vote yes with him but what I've heard is that he has no personal interest it is the
fact that he has not had enough knowledge in the contract, so [ vote No, Jeff — No

Mayor Cury - Brad need your counsel.

Brad —??

19



Doug — Two weeks ago you guys and the attorneys had not seen the contract, the first time you seen the
contract, what person would negotiate contract without their attorneys present. | had to insist about
three (3) weeks that we get the attorneys involved, that is the only reason you got them involved two
(2) weeks ago. |abstain and | am not going to say “yes” or “no” to a contract that | am not a party to.

Brad — According to the Charter “Every member, when present when a question is put, shall vote unless
excused by the Council”.

Mayor Cury - Make sure that is in the record Madam Clerk. Let the record reflect that our Town
Attorney has a vote from Councilman Strong, Councilman Street, Councilman Brown and Councilman
Hurst not allowing Councilman Ratliff to abstain, but Councilman Ratliff abstained. | think that is where
it stands at the moment. Moving forward if | am out of order please help me within the legal bounds of
what | am supposed to do. We have a motion on the floor and it is seconded, please continue with the
roll call vote on the previous motion.

Connie — Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike-Yes, Mary Ann-Yes- Motion carries 4-Yes/1 Abstained

Mayor Cury - Is there any other business that needs to come before Council following our executive
session before we adjourn? Being no further business | will ask for a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Richard — | make the motion to adjourn the meeting, Jeff second the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann

— Yes Motion carries — 5/0

Meeting Adjourned

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk

20



The Richlands Town Council held a “Work session” in the Richlands Council Chambers on November 30,
2021, at 6:00 pm, with the following present:

Mavyor: Rodney D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Heather Peery Acting Clerk

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Jeff Hurst, Mike Street, Doug Ratliff
Richard Brown, Darrell Addison

Town Attorney : Bob Altizer

Mayor Cury opened the meeting/invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

Discussion of Charter Changes- (Power Point)

Nominations & Elections & Term Limits — Reference 3.2 Charter - All in favor except Doug.

Issue brought up where in absence of the Mayor, the Vice-Mayor may vote even though they
are a Councilmember.

Attorney brought up issue, Circuit Court and in fact the issue to change was addressing this
change, would help follow exactly what the court ordered. For example, when Mary Ann voted
in the Mayor’s absence the court denied temporary injunction.

Vice-Mayor serves in absence of Mayor, allow to serve in absence of Mayor and still be allowed
to vote. lssue to clarify if a Vice-Mayor is or is not allowed to vote.

Ordinance — Leave as Is — Reference 3.8 Charter

Appointees — Leave as Is — Reference 3.9 Charter

Charter Changes — If possible, will move forward as an referendum.

Delete 3 & 4 and possibly move forward, based on referendum and put on ballot. — Ref. Charter
Changes

Discussed ARPA funds - John provided a breakdown of possible recommendations. (Attached)
Items marked in green on spreadsheet move forward, hope to finalize at the December Council
Meeting. (Greenspace Phase #2, Library, SSES Grand Funding, PD Body Worn Cameras)

Council wants a copy of how funds are allowed to be spent.

Review again at the December Council meeting.

Possible, have each Councilmember pick on additional person from the public to gain insight on

how money shall be spent and review of recommendations and other options that John
provided.

Meeting Recessed

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Heather Perry, Acting Town Clerk






RECOMMENDATION

The Town of Richlands Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on Tuesday,
November 30, 2021, to consider a recuest from Gerald Collins fcr a conditional use
permit for a public amusement business to be located at 1217 Frent Street, Richlands,

Vitginia, does hereby recommend to the Richlands Town Council that:

The Council grant Mr, Gerald Collins a conditional use permit for the public
amusement business to be located on a single lot at 1217 Front Street, Richlands,

Virginia.

RICHLANDS PLANNINC COMMISSION
By: W4 7 L )

Chairman

This recommendation was adopted by a unanimous vote, after taking public

comments, a quorum of the Commiss:on being present, upon a motion by Michelle Elswick

and a second by Elliot Joyce.







November 6, 2021

To Mayor Cury, Town Manager O’Daniel, and Section Foreman House Committee Chair Lynna Mitchell:

As the muralist who painted the Richlands & the Rails: Stories of the Clinch Valley Line mural on the
Section Foreman’s House property on Front Street, | would like to bring to your attention the need for
revarnishing and UV protectant resealing of the mural either this fall season or early spring of next
year. The mural was completed in 2016 and, as | shared with Town Manager Tim Taylor at the time,
proper maintenance on outdoor myrals usually requires that, (due to the ultra-violet rays that cause
fading of any kind of paint), the mural be re-varnished and re-sealed every 5-7 years. By doing so, the
original bright colors of the mural can be preserved before the mural begins to fade.

| am listing below the estimated costs of the materials needed for the job. I'm also including the cost of
paint for re-doing the gray color surrounding the mural as the mortar and cinderblock that was newly
constructed to make the mural wall seems to still be curing and has caused some light patches to
appear on the grey color. Also, a touchup of the black border and lower black concrete base is needed.
As to labor for the job, | am including estimated hours for the various steps in the process of re-
vitalizing the mural, based on a $20. per hour fee for my services.

Estimated Costs

Materials
e 100% Mineral Spirits (for cleaning the wall and mixing with MSA), (2) gallons ..... $30.
e Benjamin Moore Corotech Acrylic Sealer, (2) gallons @ $30./gallon.......c.ccccevennee. $60.

e MSA UVLA Protectant, (1-2) gallons @5$120/galloN .........coovevvrereeeernecrreervirennrinnnnnn. 5240,
e Nova Acryic Paint, Mars Black and Titanium White, (1) gal. each @ $50./gallon...$100.

TOTAL.c.cvvrvverririnnincencavnsiesie $430.00
Labor
@ $20. per hour, estimated hours:
e For re-painting base, upper border, background grey — 8 hours x $20. = $160.
e For cleaning w/mineral spirits — 3 hours x $20. = $60.
e For brushing on one coat of Corotech Sealer — 5 hours x $20. = $100.
e For Brushing on one coat of MSA UVLA Protectant — hours x $20. = $100.
TOTAL.cocrrinireereciennrineennennn. $420.00

Thank you for your consideration of my request for re-varnishing and re-sealing the Front Street RR
mural in the interest of preserving it.

Sincerely,
Ellen Elmes
ellen.elmes@gmail.com







Town of Richlands

PAID CHECKS REPORT

11/10/2021 to0 12/10/2021

Check#t

Paid To Description Check Date Amount
10927 |TEEN VENTURE TEEN VENTURE-OCT'21 DONATIONS 11/10/2021 $56.00
| 10928 seieineies 11/12/2021 $206.50
10929 |ADAM LANE ADAM LANE-REFUND-ANTHEM 11/12/2021 $54,50
10930 |ADRIENNE CORDLE FINAL BILL-2021 FISCAL YR END-COMP MGMT DISC/ANALYSIS RPT 11/12/20211 $1,062.50
10931 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS ADVANCE-ALL DEPTS-PARTS & SUPPLIES 11/12/2021 $914.50
10932 |AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. WWTP-OFFICE SUPPLIES,COUNCIL-3 FOLDING TABLES 11/12/2021 $732.73
10933 | AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. AMP, INC-US BANKING FEES FOR RATE STABLIZATION TRUST 11/12/2021 $550.00
10934 ASHLEY HARRIS ECONO DEVEL-MILEAGE TO MEETINGS, VANCE GRAPHICS 11/12/2021 $79.52
10935 |CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY, INC. WTP-GENERATOR-PM MAINT-REPLACE THERM/WATER TEMP REG 11/12/2021} $2,744.70
10936 CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE EMPLOYEE GARNISHMENT 11/12/2021 $317.14
10937|CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK, CCTC-REL LIEN 11/12/2021 $1.00
10938 |CLERK, C!RCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLEKK, CCTC-REL LIEN 11/12/2021 $1.00
10939 CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLEKK, CCTC-REL LIEN 11/12/2021 $1.00
10940|COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO, INC. COCA-COLA-REC PARK-CONCESSION 11/12/2021 $285.84
10941 DARRELL HOUSTON WYATT DARRELL H WYATT-REFUND-ANTHEM 11/12/2021 $29,50
10942{HACH COMPANY HACH-WWTP-PH STORAGE SOLN, 500ML PO WWB1659 11/12/2021 $358.75
10943 {IDEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC. IDEXX-WWTP-UN3373 WKIT 1001, QUANTI-CULT PO WW81660 11/12/2021 $807.31
11/12/2021 $206.50
11/12/2021 $206,50
11/12/2021 $306.50
JOSHUA SALYERS JOSHUA SALYERS-REFUND-ANTHEM/VRS/457/401 11/12/2021 $140.64
10948 |KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS KIDD TIRE-ST #621-4 TIRES/M & B/TIRE DISPOSAL 11/12/2021 $797.45
10949]KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC. KUSTOM SIGNALS-PD-IN-CAR MIC MAINTENANCE PO 305004 11/12/2021 $209.50
10950 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS OCT '21 CONTRACT FEE, 4 REAL TIME PHONE SEARCHES 11/12/2021 $37.40
10951 |PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES-PRINTING PO FIN6175 11/12/2021 $563.33
10852{5D MYERS, LLC SD MYERS, LLC-EL-TRANSFORMER MGMT PO EL700452 11/12/2021 $575.00
10953 SHINALL, EULA Utility Refund for 101152.00 98 11/12/2021 $25.76
10954 |SOUTHWEST CALIBRATIONS SW CALIRATIONS-CALIBRATE POLICE UNIT PO 305014 11/12/2021 $50.00
10955 STANLEY MCGLOTHLIN STANLEY MCGLOTHLIN-REFUND-INS/VRS 11/12/2021 $293.14
1095 11/12/2021 $206.50
109571 TRI-CITIES/SW VA REGIONAL GROUP RFP-DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION/DRIVE UP/PD-JOB POSTINGS 11/12/2021| $1,858.60
10858 |USABLUEBOOK USABLUEBOOK-LINES-RIDGIT 10' HD CAST IRON PIPE WRENCH 11/12/2021 $28.95
10959|VERIZGN WTP-SCHOOL TANK VAULT, DTF SEC LINES 11/12/2021 $312.74
10960 BLANKENSHIP, BEVE DWAYNE Utility Refund for 10010672.00 97 11/18/2021 $78.86
10961{BOYD, DYLAN SCOTT Utility Refund for 505038.00 94 11/18/2021 $181.35
10962 |BREWSTER, JEFFREY AARON Utility Refund for 403888.00 94 11/18/2021 $42.70
10963 |BRITNEE SMITH BRITNEE SMITH-REC-VOLLEYBALL JERSEYS PO RP2796 11/18/2021 $751.31
10964 |BROWN, SAMUEL HARRISON Utility Refund for 303450.00 93 11/18/2021 $150.38
10965 |CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK, CCTC-BOWMAN, ERIC JOHNSON-REL LIEN 11/18/2021 $1.00
10966 | DELAHANTY, THOMAS P Utility Refund for 11011648.00 98 11/18/2021 $96.67
10967{DOSS, ANDREA MORGAN Utility Refund for 707814.00 94 11/18/2021 $180.23
10968 |ESTEP, DUSTIN OLIVER Utility Refund for 605772,00 95 11/18/2021 $197.31
10969 |FEDEX FEDEX-DTF-SHIPPING REG FOR NEW VERICLES PO 305019 11/18/2021 $93.84
10970; FIRST COMMUNITY BANK REC-SUPPLIES,PD-CLEANING SUPPLIES, CANDY,FIN OFFICE 11/18/2021| $1,506.52
10971|GIBSON, SUSAN M Utility Refund for 303032.00 96 11/18/2021 $156.57
10972 JESSICA REYNOLDS-LAWRENCE JESSICA REYNOLDS-LAWRENCE-REC-CONCESSION PO RP2754 11/18/2021 $110.13
10973 |LISA CORDLE LISA CORDLE-REC-VOLLEYBALL JERSEYS PO RP2796 11/18/2021 $84.30
10974 |MITCHELL, STEVEN PAUL Utility Refund for 908870,00 97 11/18/2021 $101.71
10975{SAFE LIFE DEFENSE RESCUE-4FORLIFE-DEF FIRST RESPONSE ENHANCED MULT( 11/18/2021 $557.10
10976 [SEGRA SEGRA-ALL DEPTS-PHONE SERVICES 11/18/2021] $2,288.94
10977{SPECTRUM BUSINESS SPECTRUM-REC-126 REC PARK RD-INTERNET 11/18/2021 $119.99
10978 |VERIZON BUSINESS VERIZON BUSINESS-PD-LONG DISTANCE 11/18/2021 $1.38
10979 |VERIZON WIRELESS PD/DTF/FIN OFFICE/RESCUE/W/S/E CELL PHONES 11/18/2021) $1,216,95
10880 |WADE, DONNIE EDWARD Utility Refund for 808588.00 97 11/18/2021 $325.00
10981 WILSON, TONI MARIE Utility Refund for 303040,00 92 11/18/2021 $120.18
10982 |WISE, LEE ANN Utility Refund for 11011806.00 97 11/18/2021 $104.87
10983 |WOTTON, EMILY LORRAINE Utility Refund for 303036.00 93 11/18/2021 $189.21
10984 [JAMES BROOKS J BROOKS-RHS FOOTBALL SECURITY-FALL 2021 11/19/2021 $435.00
10985 |RICHARD BROWN R BROWN-RHS FOOTBALL SECURITY-FALL 2021 11/19/2021 $495.00
10986 {YOUR GRATE ESCAPE EMP CHRISTMAS LUNCHEON {LESS TAXES) 11/19/2021] $2,943.75
10987 |JOSHUA SALYERS J SALYERS-REFUND-LIBERTY POLICY 11/19/2021 $11.14
10988 BROCK ENTERPRISES REFUND DUE TO ABATEMENT FROM TAZ CO 11/24/2021 $35.70
10989 |CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE GARNISHMENT 11/24/2021 $317.14
10990 CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK, CCTC-LIEN 11/24/2021 $2.00
10991 CUMBERLAND PLATEAU HEALTH DISTRICT REC PARK-FOOD PERMIT ANNUAL FEE 11/24/2021 $40.00
10992 1JOSH WILKINSON RESCUE-MOSOLGO-EMT CLASS-4FORLIFE FUNDS PO RS3231 11/24/2021 $384.00
10993 {LISA CORDLE REC-VINYL TAPE-FOR MARKING VOLLEYBALL COURTS 11/24/2021 $266.02
10994 |MARK SMALL MARK SMALL-SANT-BOOT ALLOWANCE PO 5714510 11/24/2021 $106.00
10995 |NATIONAL BANK NATIONAL BANK-LOC INT PAYMENT 12,01,21 11/24/2021| $2,870.58
10996 [RICOH USA INC. RICOH-PD-LEASE PMTS-COPIERS-SQ RM/DISPATCH PO 305026 11/24/2021 $183.06
10997 RICOH USA, INC. RICOH-FIN OFFICE-COPIER RENT, MAINT W/TONER PO FIN6059 11/24/2021 $194.97
10998 |SPECTRUM BUSINESS ACCESS CHANNEL-SET TOP BOX, WWTP 395 SCOTCHRD ' 11/24/2021 $70.68
10999 | TAZEWELL COUNTY REFUND-OVER PMT-FIRE TRUCK #514 REPAIRS 11/24/2021 $135.70




wrensaelass




11000{ TOWN OF RICHLANDS

UTILITIES-202 THORN ST UNIT 9

11/24/2021 $100.00

11001|TRACY ALLEY

TRACY ALLEY-SANT BOOT ALLOWANCE 2021

11/24/2021 $106.00

11002 VERIZON

VERZION-2189-FAX LINE-TN HALL/FIRE/RESCUE

11/24/2021 $96.57

11003 |VIRGINIA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

VRS-LODA ADD'L PMTS-POLICE/FIRE/RESCUE

11/24/2021 $262.00

11004 | ANDREW LEE

ANDREW LEE-ST-BOOT ALLOWANCE PO ST14513

12/1/2021]  $106.00

11005|BILLY SHELTON

LINES-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE v

12/1/2021 $60.00

11006 BRADLEY BEAVERS

WTP-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00

11007 |BRYANT, ESTATE OF HAROLD E.

Utility Refund for 706760.00 98

12/1/2021 $44.26

11008 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES, INC.

CARROT-TOP-PD 4X6 NYLON VA FLAG PO 305031

12/1/2021 $112.82

11009|COMPLETE COMFORT HEATING & COOLING, INC.

COMPLETE COMFORT-PD-HEAT PUMP REPAIRS PO 305028

12/1/2021]  $483.47

11010|DAVID DECKER

D DECKER-REC-PURCHASED PICKLE BALL (100 PK) PO RP2804

12/1/2021 $128.03

11011{FEDEX

FEDEX-DTF-SHIPPING TAGS ON VEHICLES PO 305032

12/1/2021 $61.37

11012 |GEORGE WEST

ST-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00

11013 |HEATHER PERRY

FINANCE-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00
11014 JAMES NEWBERRY EL-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 12/1/2021 $60.00
11015{JEFF LESTER ST-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 12/1/2021 $60.00

11016 JESSICA REYNOLDS-LAWRENCE

JESSICA LAWRENCE-REC-WALMART-CONCESSION PO RP2803

12/1/2021]  $145.50

11017 JIMMY KEENE, JR.

WWTP-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021]  $60.00

11018 |KEITH REYNOLDS

FIRE DEPT-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00

11019 |MICHAEL WARD

MIKE WARD-SANT-BOOT ALLOWANCE PO 14512

12/1/2021 $106.00

11020[POINT BROADBAND

POINT BROADBAND-DTF-INTERNET SVC PO 305030

12/1/2021 $69.95

11021{PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC.

PMSI-POSTAGE UT BILLS DEC 2021 vt

12/1/2021 $201.76

11022 [RICKY SHELTON

¢ ST-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00

110233 TAZEWELL CO PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY

| TCPSA-WWTP-LIFT STATION

12/1/2021 $39.74

11024{TRAVIS MITCHELL

LINES-CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE

12/1/2021 $60.00

11025 TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY

TREAS, TAZ C0-11,2.21 SPECIAL ELECTION

12/1/2021]  $900.00

11026 | TRI-CITY BUSINESS MACHINES CO

PD-COPIER-B/W & COLOR COPIES

12/1/2021]  $43.42

11027|A TOUCH OF GRACE STAINED GLASS DESIGNS

SMALL BUSINESS CHRISTMAS-GIFT CARD

12/2/2021 $100.00

11028 |CAITLYN HORN

CHRISTMAS PARADE-OLAF

12/2/2021 $50.00

11029|KAYLA WINGO

PD-DISPATCH-ACADEMY PER DIEM PO 303261

12/2/2021 $70.00

11030 NIKKI BALL

CHRISTMAS PARADE-ANNA

12/2/2021 $50.00

11031 ]ONCE UPON A PARTY TN

CHRISTMAS PARADE-ELSA

12/2/2021 $125.00

11032 ]RON HOLLOWAY

CHRISTMAS PARADE-SANTA

12/2/2021 $200.00

11033 |TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY

TREAS, TAZ CO-OCT 2021 CONSUMER UT TAX

12/3/2021 $100.86

11034} APPALACHIAN POWER

AEP-WWTP-SIMMONS TOWN RD-SEW PMP LIFT ST

12/9/2021} $1,052.60

11035 ASHLEY HARRIS

ASHLEY HARRIS-SANTA'S LETTERS-ENVELOPES PO CA1059

12/9/2021 $9.73

11036;ASHTON POTTER USA, LTD,

ASHTON POTTER-540,000 CIG STAMPS PO FIN6176

12/9/2021] $3,078.00

11037 |GEORGE WEST

GEORGE WEST-ST-KINGSPORT TO PICK UP PARTS-PER DIEM

12/9/2021 $15.00

11038|GOD'S ROCKSTARS

1ST PLACE CHRISTMAS PARADE WINNER

12/9/2021 $100.00

11039}1L0GICS

LOGICS-UT PHONE PAY SYSTEM LICENSE/SUPPORT PO FIN6169

12/9/2021{ $5,400.00

11040{POSTMASTER

POSTMASTER-FEE RENEWAL FIRST CLASS PRESORT

12/9/2021 $265.00

11041|RAMP UP RICHLANDS

DONATIONS FROM RAMEY, CVMC FLOAT WINNERS

12/9/2021 $125.00

11042 [SPECTRUM BUSINESS

SPECTRUM-WWTP-580 INDIAN CREEK

12/9/2021 $39.94

11043 STEVE WHITE

STEVE WHITE-ST-BOOT ALLOWANCE PO 14518

12/9/2021 $106.00

11044 | THE BLEACHY MAMA

BLEACHY MAMA-BRITENNEE SMITH-GIFT CARD WINNER

12/9/2021 $50.00

11045]TRAVIS BENDER

TRAVIS BENDER-PER DIEM-BRISTOL ACAD-11.29-12.6.21

12/9/2021 $85.50

11046|Z0OLL DATA SYSTEMS

ZOLL DATA SYSTEMS-RESCUE-NOV '21 EMS CHARTS PO 3250

12/9/2021|  $596.00

Total Checks:

$46,394.16

GRAND TOTAL

$46,394.16 |







Town of Richlands
PAID CHECKS REPORT
12/14/2021
Check#t |Paild To Amount Description

11047 [ADVANCE AUTO PARTS $556,91 | ADVANCE-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES, PARTS
11048 ]ALLIED 100, LLC $51.44 | RESCUE-4FORLIFEFUNDS-HEARTSTART ELECTRODE PADS ADAPTOR
11049 [AMAZON WEB SERVICES, INC. $545.75 |AMAZON-IT-NOV 21 CLOUD SERVICE
11050 AMERICAN CARPET CARE, INC. $23,950.00 |NOV'21 MOW/WEED EAT/LEAF P'IP/TRASH P/UP, MEN ON TRASH TRK
11051 | AMERIGAS -7089 $408.25 | AMERIGAS-RESCUE 118.2 GALS PROPANE-HEATING PO RS3240
11052 | APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS $600.00 | AASC-DEC 2021-PUBLIC TRANSIT |
11053 | APPALACHIAN AGGREGATES, LLC $1,182,10 |APP AGGREGATES-ST-STONE |
11054 | APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES-DIXIE $296.20 |APPLIED-SHOP-10 ROLLS TAPE, DEF FLUID
11055 | ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES $968.40 | ARAMARK-ALL DEPTS- UNIFORMS
11056|ARC3 GASES $1,520,00 [SHOP-POWERMAX HYPERTHERM PLASMA SYSTEM PO 14478
11057 [ATLANTIC EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS $366.24 |RESCUE #552- (2) SOLENOID PO RS3218
11058|BANDY AUTO $794.00 |FIRE #514-REPAIRS-ALREADY REIMB BY COUNTY PO 2033
11059 |BLUE RIDGE POWER AGENCY $12,343.75 |OCT 2021-SPEC STUDIES/ENG/LEGAL/CONSULTING |
11060 |BUSKILL SALES CO., INC. $74.97 |BUSKILL SALES-LINES-BACKHOE-TUBE, LABOR ON FLAT PO L83536
11061 |C.W. WILLIAMS FIRE EQUIPMENT $583.67 |FIRE 3 FLASHLIGHTS-R MOSOGLO-BOOTS PO F2028 |
11062 |CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. $1,258.22 |CDW GOVT-ALL DEPTS-IT {2) RED HAT RHELS STD/PHYS/VIRT PO [T5050
11063 |CENTER FOR EDUCATION & EMPLOYMENT LAW $164,95 |CENTER FOR ED & EMP LAW-PD-1 YR RENEWAL PO 305041
11064 |CITGO WATER $1,053.00 |CITGO WATER-WTP-CHLORINE, FUEL SURCHARGE PO WTP0014
11065 | CLINCH VALLEY REPAIR, INC. $71.00 [2-5LB FIRE EXT RECHARGE, 1 HYDROSTATIC TEST PO RS3233
11066 | CMC SUPPLY, INC. $5,451,49 |LINES-METERING, LINE SUPPLIES |
11067 |COCA-COLA BOTTLING €O, INC. $639,51 [COCA COLA-REC-CONCESSION PO RP2797 |
11068 |COLE ELECTRIC, INC. $350.00 |COLE ELECTRIC-WWTP-2" PUMP SHAFT-REPAIRS PO 81675
11063 |CREATIVETIME SOLUTIONS $140.00 |TIME & ATTENDANCE WEB HOSTING-ALL EMPLOYEES |
11070 DELL FINANCIAL SERVICES $1,147.75 | DELL-PD-3 THUNDERBOLT DOCKS, 1 24 MONITOR PO 304896
11071 | DIVERSIFIED INTEGRATION, INC. $760.00 [WWTP-CALIBRATE INSTRUMENTATION, MILEAGE, EXPENSES
11072 | DIVERSITY GRAPHIC SOLUTIONS, LLC $1,295.00 | DIVERSITY-PD-VUS-25 SETS/BOOK PO 305001
11073 |DOMINION PEST CONTROL, INC. $205.00 [PD/WTP/REC/RESCUE NOV 21 PEST CONTROL PO 305020
11074 [ECONO SIGNS LLC $1,267.64 |ST-WRONG WAY (4), ONE WAY RIGHT ARROW {5), FREIGHT PO 14506
11075 | FRAZIER TIRE AND AUTOMOTIVE $50.00 |FRAZIER TIRE-SANT #626-TIRE PATCH PO 14509
11076{GALETON GLOVES AND SAFETY PRODUCTS $552.30- | ST/SANT-RR GLOVES/COTTON CHORE/MAX ELEMENT GLOVES PO 14508
11077 |GIBSON ENTERPRISES, INC, $3,058.48 |ALL DEPTS-MOTOR OIL/TRANS FLUID/POWER STR FLUID/BRAKE CLEAN
11078 HUMANA $206.03 [HUMANA-RALPH MULLINS/70445247 OVER PAYMENT |
11079 |iD NETWORKS $775.00 |10 NETWORKS-PD-ANN SOFTWARE ON IDS CIRM LIVESCAN
11080 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC. $122.34 [IDEXX-WWTP-(5) 25 PKSML PIPETTES PO 81660
11081 [INDIAN TOWING SERVICE $350.00 [PD-REMOVE VEHICLE FROM CV CEMETARY TO PD PO 305038
11082 |JERRY'S AUTO SERVICE $2,629.70 |FIRE#524 LABOR, RESCUE #551/552/556 SERVICES
11083 |KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS $1,975.88 |PD-#49, PD #57, FIRE #500 FLAT REPAIR
11084 |[LAWMEN SUPPLY COMPANY, INC. $383.00 |RESCUE-SHELTON, SHRADER UNIFORMS |
11085 [LEAF $111.04 |LEAF-PD MINOLTA C287 LEASE, INS PO 305043
11086 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS $36.00 |DTF-NOV 22 CONTRACT FEE, 2 REAL TIME PHONE SEARCHES
11087 |LOWE'S $580.82 [LOWE'S-ALL DEPTS | [ | [
11088|LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. $1,273.44 |LUSK-NOV'21 CVMC HAULSVC | | |
11089 | MARK E. ISON $1,500.00 [MARK E. ISON-DEC'21 MONTHLY IT SUPPORT PO 305039
11090 MATCO TOOLS $75.49 |MATCO TOOLS-SHOP-FUEL PRESSURE GAUGE, BOLTS |
11091 | MINEQUEST, INC. $171.16 |SALT SPREADER, BACKHOE, EXCAVATOR-HOSES |
11092 | MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS AMERICA, INC, $168.00 |PD-12 SETS TUNING FORKS FOR CALIBRATION PO 304808
11093 |MOBILE COMMUNICIATIONS AMERICA $2,835.00 [FIRE/RES-RFR-TOWER INSPECTION/REPL BAD COAX CABLES, CONNECTORS
11094 | MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. $127.20 [SHOP-5PC .401 SHANK INGERSOLL-RAND CHISEL SET PO 14481 |
11095 | MSE COMPANIES $740.51 |MSE-SANT #630-4 SHEAVES, 1 PIN, FREIGHT PO 14474 |
11096 | NORTHERN SAFETY CO,, INC, $550.86 | ST/SANT-HI-VIS LIME L/XL, VGARD HRD CAP W/STAZ-ON PINLCK, TISSUE
11097 |OLD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE $630,00 |OLD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE-REC-CONCESSION PO RP 2801
11098 |PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC $121.30 [PACE-WWTP-AMMONIA TESTING PO 81680 | [
11099 [POSTMASTER POUNDING MILL $84,00 [POSTMASTER-DTF-PO BOX SERVICE FEE YEARLY PO 305040
11100 PRIORITY MEDICAL CLAIMS, INC. $4,064.84 [PMC-NOV 2021-RESCUE COLLECTIONS
11101 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. $77.28 |PMSI-DEC 21-COMMERCIAL BILL UT BILLS
11102 | PURITY CHEMICALS, INC. $579.90 | PURITY-ST/SANT/LINES/EL-OPEN GEAR 2 DZ
11103 |QUADMED, INC. $2,432.16 | QUADMED-RESCUE-PPE FUNDS-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO RS3216
11104 |RAILROAD MANAGEMENT COMPANY IV, LLC $18,420.95 |RIGHT OF WAY FEES-ANNUAL
11105 [RAVEN SUPER MARKET $90.41 [WWTP-GALS PAINT, GLUE | |
11106 [REFLECTIVE APPAREL FACTORY, INC. $84.00 |RESCUE-PARKA, VEST-JACKSON, COLE PO R$3202
11107 [RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU $1,113.21 |RLDS FARM BUREAU-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES |
11108 |ROBINSON AUTO PARTS $11.98 [ROBINSON AUTO-WWTP-2 BLUE GLUE PO WW81671
11109|SILVER SPUR SUPPLY, INC. $21.58 [SILVER SPUR-FR ST BRIDGE WALKWAY-TREATED 2X12X10 PO 14514
11110 STATE ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY $280.94 |C-MAS TREE AUTOMATION CONTROL-RELAY MODULE PO EL700448
11111 |STRESSCRETE GROUP $14,790.00 | STRESSCRETE GROUP-EL-10 KING LUMINARIRES PO EL700438
11112 | TEEN VENTURE $166.00 | TEEN VENTURE-NO 21-DONATIONS COLLECTED
11113 | THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. $16,370.91 |T & L-WWWT/WTP-UPGRADES/IMPR-BID/ADV- NOV 2021
11114|TRUCKPRO, LLC $501.42 | TRUCKPRO-SANT 648-BLW MTR, ST #646-STRAP, CABLE ASY PO 14480
11115 [ULINE $3,083.85 |ULINE-RESCUE-10 SLIM STORAGE CABINET PO RS3237
11116 |ULTRA PETROLEUM $13,937.01 [ULTRA-ALL DEPTS-FUEL
11117 |USALCO $7,812.80 |USALCO-WTP-DELPAC 2020 PO WTP0015
11118|VERIZON $494,61 |VERIZON-PD 4035 |
11119 |VIRGINIA RISK SHARING ASSOCIATION $53,685,00 |VA RISK-2021-2022-WORKER'S COMP-3RD INSTALLMENT
11120 |VIRGINIA UTILITY PROTECTION SERVICE, INC, $11.55 [VUPS-MISS UTILITY-NOV 2021-11 TRANSMISSIONS |
11121 |W-L CONSTRUCTION & PAVING, INC. $573.11 |W-L CONSTRUCTION-ST-6.41 TON ASPHALT |
11122 | WORLDPOINT ECC, INC. $702.95 |RESCUE-4FORLIFE-TENSION PNEUMOTHORAX SIM PO RS3200
11123 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. $13,08 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE-PD-BOX SHEET PROTECTOR PO 305016

TOTAL CHECKS $217,472.33

AMP {OCT '21) $364,988.91

MORGAN STANLEY (OCT'21) 41,713.20

ANTHEM BC/8S (OCT'21) 101,160.00

VRS (SEPT 21) 68,466.24

GRAND TOTAL $793,800.68







